CITY OF LEAVENWORTH
PLANNING COMMISSION
COMMISSION CHAMBERS, CITY HALL
100 N. 5t Street
Leavenworth, KS 66048

REGULAR SESSION
Monday, February 5, 2024
6:00 p.m.

CALL TO ORDER:
1. Roll Call/Establish Quorum

2. Approval of Minutes: December 4, 2023

OLD BUSINESS:

None

NEW BUSINESS:
1. ELECTION OF OFFICERS

2. 2024-01 SUP —300 N. 4™ STREET
Conduct a public hearing for Case No. 2024-01 SUP — 300 N. 4™ Street, wherein the applicant is
requesting a Special Use Permit allow a gas station use in the North Neighborhood Overlay District.
Gas station uses are allowed in the North Neighborhood Redevelopment Overlay District with the
issuance of a Special Use Permit.

3. 2024-04 SUP —920 N 14™ STREET
Conduct a public hearing for Case No. 2024-04 SUP — 920 N 14t Street, wherein the applicant is
requesting a Special Use Permit allow a two-family dwelling in the R1-6 zoning district, High Density
Single Family Residential District. Two-family dwellings are allowed in the R1-6 zoning district with
the issuance of a Special Use Permit.

4. 2023-26 SUB — LUXURY ADDITION FINAL PLAT
Consider a final plat for Luxury Addition, Case No. 2023-26 SUB.

5. 2023-30 TXT — TEXT AMENDMENTS

Conduct a public hearing for Case No. 2023-30 TXT for proposed text amendments to the adopted
2016 Development Regulations.

OTHER BUSINESS:

None

ADJOURN




CITY OF LEAVENWORTH PLANNING COMMISSION
COMMISSION CHAMBERS, CITY HALL
100 N 5% Street, Leavenworth, Kansas 66048
REGULAR SESSION
Monday, December 4, 2023

6:00 PM
CALL TO ORDER:
Commiissioners Present Commissioners Absent
Don Homan James Diggs
Sherry Hines Whitson
Brian Stephens
Maryann Neeland
Bill Waugh City Staff Present
Kathy Kem Julie Hurley

Michelle Baragary
Bethany Falvey

Chairman Homan called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. and noted a quorum was present.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: November 6, 2023

Chairman Homan asked for questions, comments or a motion on the minutes presented for approval:
November 6, 2023. Commissioner Stephens moved to approve the minutes as presented, seconded by
Commissioner Whitson and approved by a vote of 6-0.

NEW BUSINESS:

1. 2023-34 SUB — DOLLAR TREE — LEAVENWORTH
Consider a final plat for Dollar Tree — Leavenworth, Case No. 2023-34 SUB.

Chairman Homan called for the staff report.

City Planner Bethany Falvey stated the subject property is located at 2017 S 4" Street owned by Great
Western Manufacturing Co., Inc., plat prepared by OWN, Inc. The applicant is requesting approval of
aone lot final plat for Dollar Tree — Leavenworth subdivision at 2017 S. 4" Street. The subject property
is currently an unplatted lot that is approximately 6.87 acres. The proposed platisa 1.53 acres portion
of the entire 6.87 acre lot. The property is zoned GBD, General Business District. The 1.53 acres of
this property is currently only used for parking and is otherwise a vacant lot. (The policy report
incorrectly noted the size of the proposed plat as 1.53 acres. The actual plat is 1.34 acres).

The plat was reviewed at the November 16, 2023 Development Review Committee. All comments
from the committee have been addressed.

Staff recommends approval of the Dollar Tree — Leavenworth Subdivision, Final Plat.
ACTION/OPTIONS:

Leavenworth Planning Commission 1 December 4, 2023



e Approved the Final Plat
e Deny the Final Plat
e Table theissue for additional information/consideration.

Chairman Homan asked for questions/discussion from the commissioners.

Commissioner Stephens asked if this has already been done, and that the commissioners are just
formally approving what has already been done.

Planning Director Julie Hurley responded that the Great Western property is on one lot, and is not
currently platted. Dollar Tree is purchasing the unused portion of the Great Western parcel to the
north so they are platting that lot so they can move forward with a development.

Chairman Homan asked if the road located behind Great Western is a private road.

Ms. Hurley stated that road is located on city property where the Animal Control building is. The road is not
located on the Great Western parcel, and is not right-of-way.

Commissioner Stephens asked if this Dollar Tree will be a new store or if it will be replacing another Dollar
Tree.

Ms. Hurley stated this is just a new Dollar Tree building, and will not be replacing another Dollar Tree.
Chairman Homan asked if Dollar Tree and Family Dollar have merged.

Alex Gustafson, engineer for the Dollar Tree project, stated Family Dollar and Dollar Tree are owned by the
same entity. The stores that open are different with Family Dollar more like a one stop shop for all your home
goods needs, and Dollar Trees are geared more for birthday items and things like that.

Commissioner Stephens asked if this store will carry the fresh vegetables and fruits.

Mr. Gustafson responded in the negative stating this is not one of the Dollar Tree Market places.

Commissioner Whitson asked when they plan to open.

Mr. Gustafson responded that construction would be completed about mid next year, and should be open by
June 2024.

Commissioner Stephens asked if there was anything from the city for traffic considerations.

Ms. Hurley stated no traffic study was required. The site plan is completely separate from the plat, and has
been reviewed by staff as well.

With no further questions or discussion, Chairman Homan called for a motion. Commissioner Whitson moved
to approve the final plat for Dollar Tree — Leavenworth, seconded by Commissioner Kem, and approved by a
vote of 5-1 (Commissioner Stephens voted nay).

2. 2023-30 TXT — TEXT AMENDMENTS
Conduct a public hearing for Case No. 2023-30 TXT for proposed text amendments to the adopted 2016
Development Regulations.

Leavenworth Planning Commission 2 December 4, 2023



Planning Director Julie Hurley stated this item is being continued to the January 8, 2024 Planning Commission
meeting at the request of staff to provide additional time to make the amendments.

OLD BUSINESS:

1. 2023-28 SUP —-1913 CHOCTAW STREET

The public hearing for Case No. 2023-28 SUP — 1913 Choctaw Street was conducted at the
November 6, 2023 Planning Commission meeting, and the vote was tabled to the December 4,
2023 Planning Commission meeting for requested additional information. The applicants/owners
are requesting a Special Use Permit to allow for the operation of a Child Care Center for seven or
more children in their home located at 1913 Choctaw Street. The property is currently zoned R1-
9, Medium Density Single Family Residential District. Child Care Centers are allowed in the R1-9
zoning district with the issuance of a Special Use Permit.

Chairman Homan called for the staff report.

Planning Director Julie Hurley stated this item was previously considered at the November 6, 2023
Planning Commission meeting and was tabled in order for staff to provide additional information.

The applicants, Gerald and Vanessa Jackson, are requesting a Special Use Permit to allow the
operation of a Child Care Center in their home located at 1913 Choctaw Street. The property is
currently zoned R1-9 (Medium Density Single Family Residential). Child Care Centers are allowed in
the R1-9 zoning district with issuance of a Special Use Permit. The applicant is licensed by the State
of Kansas to care for a maximum of 12 children, dependent upon the ages of the children in care, and
has indicated that she currently has a total of 8 children enrolled.

The applicant previously operated a home daycare since 2020 at their prior residence in Leavenworth.
There was no Special Use Permit applied for at the previous location, as the applicant has indicated
that she was unaware of the City requirement to obtain a Special Use Permit in addition to being
licensed by the State. Staff was notified in August by a neighbor that the applicant was operating her
daycare at 1913 Choctaw, and contacted the Leavenworth County Health Department to see if the
applicant was licensed. County staff contacted the applicant, and she contacted City staff the
following day to inquire about steps needed in order to obtain a Special Use Permit, before staff had
the opportunity to send a notice of violation.

During the November 6 Planning Commission meeting, staff was asked by the board members to
provide data generated by a speed survey that was currently being undertaken by the Leavenworth
Police Department, as well as information regarding property values near existing home daycares and
potential signage or other traffic calming measures for the area. The request for additional
information was made based upon concerns raised by neighbors during the meeting.

SPEED SURVEY

At the request of neighbors, the Leavenworth Policy Department installed a stealth radar device at
the intersection of 19" & Choctaw Street to record vehicle count and speed for a two-week period.
Data was collected from 11/1/23 through 11/15/23. The results are as follows:

Posted Speed Limit: 30 mph
Vehicles Counted: 2,722
Vehicles Under Speed Limit: 96.88%

Leavenworth Planning Commission 3 December 4, 2023



Average Speed: 21.46 mph
Average Speed Violation: 33.99 mph

During the speed survey, 1 vehicle was registered going over the designated Excessive Speed
threshold of 55 mph. The time of that recording was between 6pm & 7pm. This timeframe falls
outside of the normal business hours of the daycare. The owner of the daycare provided sign in/sign
out sheets for the duration of the speed survey, which indicated that no children were picked up
between the hours of 6pm and 7pm on any day.

Given the lack of data suggesting speeding or traffic volume issues, no traffic calming measures for
the area are indicated.

EXISTING HOME DAYCARES/PROPERTY VALUES

There are currently 15 active Special Use Permits for home daycares in the City of Leavenworth. Staff
surveyed the 2022-2023 property value increase for the immediately surrounding 8-10 properties of
a random sample of 9 of those existing daycares. The average property value increase was 15.36%.
The average property value increase for Leavenworth County during the same period was 14.85%, per
the Leavenworth County Appraiser’s Office.

CONDITIONS OF DETERMINATION

In recommending approval of a special use, the Planning Commission may impose such conditions, safeguards and

restrictions as may be necessary to carry out the general purpose and intent of the ordinance. The development

regulations stipulate specific conditions as a requirement for the approval of Child Care Centers as follows:

Shall not be located along an arterial street as designated on the Major Street Plan Map unless indirect
vehicular access to that street, such as with a frontage road is available. The City Planner, with the advice
of the DRC, shall determine if the drop off and pick up arrangements of a childcare center or business
appear safe. Appeal of any negative decision shall be to the City Commission.

The subject property is located along Choctaw Street, which is classified as a Residential street.

Shall provide at least one hundred (100) square feet of open space per child. This open space shall be
100% enclosed by a minimum four (4) foot high fence or wall.

The back yard area of the property is completely enclosed by an approximately 4’ high chain link fence,
with a 4’ high wooden fence having been installed to divide the yard into two areas, one of which is for
exclusive use of the daycare. The portion of the yard established for use by the daycare clients is
approximately 2,000 sqft. Upon inspection by staff, portions of the chain link fence, which existed prior to
the applicants purchasing the property, appear to be slightly lower than 4’ by up to 4”. The wooden
portion of the fence, which was installed by the applicant, meets or exceeds 4’.

Shall provide a loading zone capable of accommodating at least two (2) automobiles for the easy picking
up and discharging of passengers.

The subject property includes a driveway capable of accommodating 4 cars.

Shall conform to all requirements of the State of Kansas and shall acquire a State of Kansas Child Care
Center License.

The applicants have provided a copy of their Group Day Care Home permit from the Kansas Department of
Health and Environment (KDHE). KDHE staff has visited and inspected the daycare for all areas of
compliance.

Leavenworth Planning Commission 4 December 4, 2023



5. All childcare centers operated in residential zoning districts shall be the only legal residence of the
operator.

The home functions as the only residence of the operator/owner.
6. Childcare centers in residential districts may have one non-illuminated monument sign with no more than

3 square feet per side and a maximum of two sides or one non-illuminated sign affixed to the main
structure of 3 square feet.

No signage is currently displayed on the property. Any signage displayed in the future will conform to this
requirement.

COMMISSION FINDINGS

The Commission may recommend issuance of a Special Use Permit whenever it finds that:

1. The proposed special use complies with all applicable provisions of this ordinance.

Staff believes that this application complies, or will comply, with all provisions of City of Leavenworth
Development Regulations, based upon review of all available materials.

2. The proposed special use at the specified location will contribute to and promote the economic
development, welfare or convenience of the public.

Child Care Centers are an essential service to working parents in the community, and promote the
economic development, welfare and convenience of the public.

3. The special use will not cause substantial injury to the value of other property in the neighborhood
in which it is located.

Staff has no indication that the proposed Child Care Center will cause any substantial injury to the
value of other property in the neighborhood, based upon available data.

4. The location and size of the special use, the nature and intensity of the operation involved in or
conducted in connection with it, and the location of the site with respect to streets giving access to
it are such that the special use will not dominate the immediate neighborhood so as to prevent
development and use of neighboring property in accordance with the applicable zoning district
regulations.

No new structures or building modifications are proposed as part of this special use permit. The
property will continue to look and function as a residential structure. The daycare could account for
an increase in up to 48 car trips per day on the street, when at full capacity of 12 children.

Notification was sent to property owners within 200’ of the subject property, as required by Kansas Statue.
After notifications were mailed, staff received one inquiry from notified property owners, who indicated
that they were not in favor of the Special Use Permit. During the November 6™ Planning Commission
meeting, multiple individuals spoke both in favor of, and opposition of, the Special Use Permit. Since the
November 6" Planning Commission meeting, staff has received 4 letters in support of the Special Use Permit.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends approval of the Special Use Permit request based on the analysis and findings
included herein, subject to the following conditions:

1. A minimum of 1,200 square feet of open space 100% enclosed by a minimum 4’ high fence or wall
shall be provided and maintained in good condition.

Leavenworth Planning Commission 5 December 4, 2023



2. A copy of the permanent Group Day Care Home license shall be provided annually upon renewal
by the State of Kansas.

3. The operation shall be limited to a maximum of 12 children.

4. No additional home occupations may be carried out at the residence.

Failure to maintain compliance with all conditions shall result in revocation of the Special Use Permit.

ACTION/OPTIONS:

e Motion, based upon findings as stated and conditions as presented, to recommend approval to the City
Commission with included conditions

e Motion to recommend denial to the City Commission

e Table the issue for additional information/consideration

Chairman Homan asked for questions from the commissioners about the staff report. With no
guestions, Chairman Homan asked Police Chief Pat Kitchens to go over the data from the speed study.

Police Chief Pat Kitchens stated from his understanding, the basic question asked of the Police
Department related to this item was is there a speeding problem in this particular neighborhood. One
particular neighbor has had quite a bit of contact with the Traffic Supervisor Sgt. Brandon Mance
about traffic concerns. When this question arises, there is a very specific process used to evaluate it
that has 3 components.

Chief Kitchens stated first, there is a Kansas State Statute that requires the Police Department to
conduct a traffic investigation and engineering study if they are going to consider making changes to
the speed limit. As part of this entire process, the Police Department also has the ability to answer
our questions from the community about this because this is a common practice that the Police
Department gets so they use their technology to make a decision. One particular part is very
important, which is the percentage of people that were measured. 97% of the people that were
measured in the speed study were traveling at or below the speed limit. This is important because
the criteria established to make any changes would be 85%. That means in order for the Police
Department to consider making some kind of change or modification they would need to have less
than 85% of the people traveling in that roadway to be speeding. In this case, 97%, almost 100%, of
the people are at or below the speed limit, and the people that were above are at a very small range.
So this component would not allow the Police Department to move forward with changes or
modifications.

Chief Kitchens further stated the second part of that component is traffic accidents. From January 1,
2022 to today, there have been zero traffic accidents in this neighborhood so the second component
is not eligible for the Police Department to take action.

Chief Kitchens stated the final component in the State Statute allows the Police Department to make
a judgment. Even still, if there is no speeding or not a lot of traffic accidents, can the Police
Department still come up with some judgment, and in Chief Kitchen’s experience and consultation
with Public Works Director Brian Faust, there is nothing that would indicate there is some unique
circumstance that exists that would require the police to do that. So the answer to the question is
there a speeding problem in that neighborhood that would warrant the Police Department taking
action, is no. Chief Kitchens further stated that there are a number of locations that are far worse
than this neighborhood in terms of speeding and traffic accidents that take up quite a bit of the Police
Department’s resources.

Commissioner Stephens asked if the statute or local protocol defines how long the study is to last.

Leavenworth Planning Commission 6 December 4, 2023



Chief Kitchens responded in the negative stating that in his experience the 14 day window gives them
the best sense of what is really going on in that neighborhood. Additionally, the manufacturer of the
technology also states that generally speaking this timeframe would give you your best estimation of
what is going on.

Commissioner Neeland asked if people in this neighborhood could ask that the traffic study be done
again at some time because the fact of the matter is that it was in place, then this board met, and the
daycare owners said that they were going to talk to the daycare parents, which they apparently did
and they all lowered their speed. The fact of the matter is the daycare parents were warned not to
speed anymore but what if that picks back up again.

Chief Kitchen responded in the affirmative that the radar device can be put back out there again. He
further stating that his experience with people knowing the radar device is out there is that they may
slow down for a few days but after that, they return to their normal routine driving behavior and
pattern.

Public Works Director Brian Faust stated he will just echo what the Police Chief said that based on the
data he would not be supportive in a change in the speed limit or of speed calming methods.

With no questions for Mr. Faust, Ms. Hurley stated that the public hearing for this item was conducted
at the November 6 Planning Commission meeting so tonight is not a public hearing. A number of
people in the audience may want to speak to this item so at the board’s discretion you may allow
public comment if you would like to take that. Ms. Hurley stated that based on the length of public
comment at the last meeting, with some fairly long speakers, that staff suggests out of respect for
everyone’s time that any comments be limited to five minutes, and be limited to any new information
or concerns that were not presented at the last meeting, since all of those have been heard and
entered into the record. This is standard with City Commission meetings, that actually limit speakers
to three minutes. To keep everyone on track, Ms. Hurley will set her timer on her phone for five
minutes with any speakers so we can keep things moving along. Before taking any public comments,
staff suggests having the applicants provide any information or comment that they would like to.

Commissioner Stephens asked the applicants how the conversation went with the daycare parents
about lowering their speed in the neighborhood, and if the applicants have noticed any differences
themselves since the last meeting.

Applicants, Vanessa and Gerry Jackson, stated they did speak with the daycare parents, and the
parents all understood the concerns of the neighbors, and the parents all respectfully stated they
would watch their speed a bit closer.

Commissioner Stephens asked if they have received any more complaints from neighbors about
parking, traffic volume, etc.

Mr. Jackson stated the neighbors to the west of them (Ron and LouAnn) spoke to them about a
daycare parent who parked a little bit in front of their driveway. The Jackson’s spoke with the daycare
parent, and also purchased a road cone that they set out and have instructed the daycare parents not

to park behind that cone.

Mrs. Jackson stated she puts the cone out in the morning and again in the afternoon and there has
not been a problem with parking since.

Chairman Homan stated it concerns him that there is only one bathroom for eight daycare children.

Leavenworth Planning Commission 7 December 4, 2023



Mrs. Jackson stated they have only one kid who is fully potty-trained and one kid that is in the process
of being potty-trained.

Commissioner Stephens asked if they have been inspected by the State of Kansas, and if so, have they
passed inspection.

Mrs. Jackson responded in the affirmative.
Chairman Homan asked if they can only watch kids up to a certain age.
Mrs. Jackson responded they are licensed to watch kids from 6 weeks of age to 11 years of age.

Ms. Hurley stated the State License is in the packet and outlines the ratio of kids that are allowed, and
that ratio is based on the ages of kids in the daycare.

Mrs. Jackson stated their license allows for up to 12 kids but they will never have 12 kids because they
will always have an infant in the daycare.

Mr. Jackson stated if you have an infant in the daycare, it lowers your maximum allowed to nine total
children in the daycare. If they have two infants, the maximum number of children allowed will lower
to eight.

Chairman Homan asked if anyone else would like to speak, and if so the allotted time to speak will be
held to five minutes.

Rebekah Varvel, 1317 9™ Avenue, stated she is a parent of a child who attends the daycare, and
noticed at the November meeting there was a lot of emphasis on if daycares are needed in
Leavenworth (Ms. Varvel provided staff and commissioners a packet of the importance of daycares).
Ms. Varvel stated not only is there a need for daycare in Leavenworth but there is a need for daycare
in Kansas. Leavenworth is located in what is called a daycare desert. In the packet she provided, there
are maps of Leavenworth, as well as a map of the neighborhood where the Jackson’s daycare is
located. Just this year, the Kansas City Star reported that just in Kansas there is over 84,000 kids in
Kansas alone that do not have daycare because there are not enough available slots open. Justin the
Jackson’s neighborhood, there are 444 children under the age of five that need daycare but there is
only 184 slots available so there is definitely a need in this neighborhood for daycare to exist. Ms.
Varvel further stated that Child Care Aware of Kansas did a study, which showed a lack of daycare
openings. According to this study, there were approximately 1,800 children under the age of six that
need daycare and were unable to find a daycare. Ms. Varvel stated she works for the Leavenworth
School District and so do several other daycare parents that use the Jackson’s daycare. When looking
for daycare, Ms. Varvel actually looked at daycare in Platte City and Atchison because there just is not
a lot of daycares in this area. She was lucky and fortunate to get into the Jackson’s daycare. Ms.
Varvel requests the commissioners take this information into account when looking to approve the
Special Use Permit request.

Michael Ingram, 1908 Choctaw, stated he has been tracking appraisals within two blocks of Choctaw
Street, in fact 30 properties around the city for 15 years, and knows a little bit about appraisals, and
how it has worked over that time in the state and in the county. Our two blocks of Choctaw over the
time period of 2022 to 2023, they went up 15.17%. It was a 15% standard application across the city;
first time ever that has happened, and what would change it would be recent sales. That may have
missed the mark as far as what we are doing because it is about our particular neighborhood. Mr.
Ingram further stated he is glad Chief Kitchens is here because he could explain what the traffic study

Leavenworth Planning Commission 8 December 4, 2023



was all about. While looking back at Chief Kitchens, Mr. Ingram stated when he got with Sgt. Mance
back on the 5 of September, he took a ride around and sat at our house (inaudible as Mr. Ingram is
turned around and not speaking into the microphone)...beautiful job, we appreciated it. Got it hooked
up. It took two months to get the equipment up because it is so much in demand.

Mr. Ingram further stated he understood some things and one thing he understood at the end was
we may get speed limit reduced, we may not but we would possibly have a stop sign up at the
intersection where that T is. That would be helpful. Mr. Ingram turned around again and stated to
Chief Kitchens he doesn’t know where they are at in this whole process now.

Ms. Hurley requested that Mr. Ingram keep his comments directed into the microphone for the
record.

Mr. Ingram continued by stating since the speed study came up, the summary was given the lack of
data suggesting speeding or traffic volume issues. Lack of data might have been a Freudian slip. Mr.
Ingram directed the commissioners to look at their packet at the speed study to point out something
and have it clarified by the Police Chief. The summary page has the inbound and outbound traffic.
There is a 310 difference between inbound and outbound. Apparently, there are magical cars that
are appearing and go outbound (inaudible as Mr. Ingram keeps turning around directing his comments
at Chief Kitchens). | don’t know if that is radar beam that does not work or what could be going on
but we'll move past that.

Mr. Ingram stated if you look at the distribution chart by hours, I'm just going to point to the 07:00 -
07:59 hour. This is the count for the entire 14-day period. The total number of cars coming in and
going out is what? It’s zero, and that is impossible. When we saw this because | was not being
provided this information ahead of you guys. | had to see the packet and try to figure out what is
going on so | can do something if necessary about it. There is something wrong about this report. |
don’t know how the data was logged but | know how this report gets brought off of the stealth
equipment, and it could be that something happened as far as the data reporting part of it. | don’t
know but you cannot have zero as a count in the 07:00 - 07:59 hour, and if you were looking at this
one excessive speed at that hour, why did you not notice here when she (Mrs. Jackson) opens up that
there are no cars in those two weeks. Impossible. | know it’s not true, and even the next hour, 37
total. There is something wrong. We did go to daylight savings time in this period but | don’t know
how that could affect this coming off of the measured recorded data on the machine and then being
downloaded into this report. You can set it up for hours that you do not have it collecting, and there’s
some discrimination of vehicles and these sorts of things but there is something wrong right there.
Turning directly around to face Chief Kitchens, Mr. Ingram stated he doesn’t know (inaudible because
Mr. Ingram is not speaking into the microphone).

Chairman Homan again requested that Mr. Ingram to speak directly into the microphone.

Mr. Ingram stated Chief | don’t know how you get a zero when | saw vehicles in those times. Now
turning and directly speaking to Ms. Jackson, Mr. Ingram stated | know you’ve had people at 7:00am.
| mean, we know that so something is not correct about that. | don’t know if it’s an hour shift that

needs to be done.

Commissioner Stephens stated he does not want Mr. Ingram to run out of time, and since he has
stated that point about the 07:00 to 07:59 hour, does he have another point to make.

Mr. Ingram stated there is a day-by-day pattern that you can also drop out. There is no day-by-day so
we don’t see the weekend taken out.

Leavenworth Planning Commission 9 December 4, 2023



The five minute timer went off.

Mr. Ingram proceeded to state Maryann’s (Commissioner Neeland) point exactly though, we don’t
really see the morning and separate out who’s what day. The Monday — Friday is what we were talking
about.

Commissioner Stephens asked what story does this data not tell.

Mr. Ingram responded we don’t know. There can’t be a zero from 7:00 — 8:00am.

Commissioner Stephens asked Mr. Ingram what his subjective experience that is not represented in
this data because we have over 95% compliance. We are not looking at a margin of like 40% so that
if we missed an entire hour that it would throw off the results. This is a huge sample size.

Mr. Ingram asked what is the difference between the inbound and outbound. That is 310.

Commissioner Stephens asked with the overall results of the data, how is it different than what you
experience as a human.

Mr. Ingram responded he experiences the 48 cars every day, or 32 right now, or whatever. |
experience all of them passing in front of my face because I’'m at the end of the cul-de-sac. So | don't
know what this is going to record all the way up and down. It seems like it could be right but not for
those hours.

Commissioner Stephens asked with the exception of those zeros, if Mr. Ingram thinks it captured the
traffic volume (inaudible — Mr. Ingram started speaking).

Mr. Ingram stated why would | think that’s correct though. | see that’s not right. So is it a matter of
the time, being a shift in the reporting and producing that report.

Ms. Hurley stated that Chief Kitchens can speak to how the data is collected since he is familiar with
the equipment.

Looking at the map, Commissioner Stephens asked what if someone parks in front of this center.

Mr. Ingram yelled no, not for two weeks, Brian. No, we’re not standing for that. This is not correct
right there, and if it’s a two hour shift, then we’re capturing the wrong picture.

Commissioner Stephens stated the difference is this is not hinging on the traffic study. There is
nothing (inaudible — Mr. Ingram interrupted).

Mr. Ingram stated he knows this has nothing to do with you and the Special Use Permit but it’s been
brought into this, and there is something wrong about it, and it was part of how she’s saying (referring
to Mrs. Jackson) oh this one out here at that time couldn’t have been. Well we don’t know what time
that is.

Commissioner Stephens stated unless you can present object evidence (inaudible — Mr. Ingram
interrupted).

Mr. Ingram stated he couldn’t get in contact with them (pointing at Chief Kitchens) to even found out
what had happened.

Leavenworth Planning Commission 10 December 4, 2023



Commissioner Stephens stated if Mr. Ingram cannot present objective evidence then the board will
have to go with the evidence that we have. We are only talking about a Special Use Permit. We have
no authority to do anything else.

Mr. Ingram stated he was bringing this up because you co-opted this and | want to know you’re not
seeing at 7:00-8:00am there were no cars counted. That can’t be. Something is wrong with the study.

Ms. Hurley stated that point has been made, and Chief Kitchens can speak to how the data is collected.
Commissioner Stephens asked Chief Kitchens if he has anything to add.

Chief Kitchens stated he is not prepared to answer the questions, and stands by the study. If Mr.
Ingram has specific questions or he has issues with that, in my opinion it is not relevant to this tonight.
I’'m telling you in my opinion of 33 years of experience, a review of that data and traffic accidents the
guestion was is there a speeding problem in the neighborhood, and the answer to that question is no,
and that is unequivocal.

Mr. Ingram stated he question is why were there zero cars counted from 7:00-8:00am. It casts doubt
on what we’re looking at. I'm trying to figure it out in my head, and also the 300 car discrepancy
between inbound and outbound. How did they magically appear in the neighborhood.

Ms. Hurley stated those concerns have been noted for the record, and staff asks that we move on to
try and keep things moving.

Chairman Homan stated he appreciates Mr. Ingram bringing that concern to the board, and suggests
that maybe Chief Kitchens could speak with Mr. Ingram to answer some of these questions the best
he can. All the board can go by is what has been presented to them.

Mr. Ingram stated | understand. It was hey look, here we go again.

Chairman Homan stated they appreciate what Mr. Ingram has given them. The traffic study did not
say anything about stop signs or anything like that. Rather than how many cars came in and out,
maybe at the T intersection there should be a yield sign or stop sign. Maybe the neighborhood should
go to the city with that.

Mr. Ingram stated that was discussed in the parallel path with Sgt. Mance from the beginning, and
that is why | brought it up and told you what we’ve been doing.

Ms. Hurley stated that is not part of this consideration.
Chairman Homan stated all they can go by is what is provided in the study.

Mr. Ingram stated he did not mean for it to get wrapped into this process but it did because you all
go it and put it in and that data cannot be true.

Ms. Hurley stated the traffic results were because of the request of Mr. Ingram at the last meeting.
Staff suggests that Mr. Ingram get back in touch with Sgt. Mance, since he was his initial point of
contact at the police station, if he has specific questions about the study. The study was requested
by the neighbors, Mr. Ingram in particular, and the board at the last meeting that staff provide this
data, and that is what staff has done to help the board make their decision. Staff suggests that we
move on to the next speaker.

Leavenworth Planning Commission 11 December 4, 2023



Commissioner Stephens stated he wants to make a point of clarification that this commission did not
ask for the traffic study to be done. This commission heard there might be a study, and asked that
this item be tabled so the board can have that information; but this data is being presented not as
part of this Special Use Permit, but as additional information for the board to consider.

Ms. Hurley responded in the affirmative.

Bonnie Ingram, 1908 Choctaw, stated we noticed immediately when the stealth radar went up that it
must have been obvious because it had slowly dropped, but by the time the last Planning Commission
Meeting happened the next day it just dropped immediately. It was obvious that Vanessa Jackson
spoke with the parents, and that they were coming in much slower, and it has continued. We are
grateful for that. It has made it more pleasant to look out our front window and not see them coming
in at that speed. The parking has been better, and the cones have really helped. Both my husband
and | are data driven so when we see something that doesn’t make sense, we can’t let it go because
if there is bad data then you don’t know what you’re looking at. We've heard a lot about daycare and
I've looked at all the statistics too, and statistics can be tricky because a lot of that is about potential
need of daycare. We weren’t really here to talk about daycare. We were concerned that there was
a business operating in the neighborhood that was causing a difference in traffic, and we wanted to
see that addressed. If daycare is an issue here, | would think that in the City Connection that
something should be put in there about daycare, and the need for a Special Use Permit. There’s lots
about massage therapists, and it’s in there like every other time, and | don’t really think that needs to
be in there as much. Perhaps something about daycare can be put in there if we think we need
daycare, and let people know what they need to do to provide it. We might get in on the front end
of this process instead of the back end, as | had said in the last meeting. We have been more
concerned about the process, not the fact that there is a daycare in our neighborhood, and | wanted
to make that clear.

Claude Collins, 1920 2" Avenue, stated he attended the last meeting, and wants to address some
items that were mentioned then and at tonight’s meeting. All this traffic before the daycare parents,
they were going 50 mph. Where did that come from? | have a motorcycle that flies by my house
sometimes at 88 mph and sometimes at 92 mph, or that’s what it seems like. | was over at Gerry and
Vanessa’s house Thursday for Thanksgiving, and that night when | was leaving, | was driving south on
19" Street and did get up to 30 mph, and | thought it was too fast. | normally drive about 20 mph. If
I’'m out on the sidewalk and somebody is driving 30 mph, I’'m going to be thinking they need to slow
down because they are probably going 50 mph. We are basing 50 mph that everybody is driving based
on people’s visualization. As far as the daycare, anyone can have a home daycare up to six kids. The
Jackson’s are licensed for 12 children. For them to have 12 children, three of them have to be over
the age of five. They can only have five kids under 5-years of age with a maximum of nine kids. Talking
with the Jackson’s, they do not watch school aged kids so the maximum they will have is nine kids
with the permit. Without the permit they can have six so we are talking about three extra vehicles
and 12 extra trips per day going down 19 Street. The other thing is that 19" Street is owned by the
public, it is not owned by the residents of that community. They said it tonight, “our community”,
“my neighborhood”. Well that is my street too. If | want to play my saxophone on 19*" Street, | can
because it’s a public sidewalk. As far as walking on the street, that is against the law, and someone
said it wasn’t at the last meeting. The 2023 Kansas Statute standard traffic ordinance, section 68,
paragraph (a) states if there is a sidewalk available, it shall be unlawful to walk in the roadway. They
think that should be their private street, and it’s not. | used to drive my motorcycle up and down that
street every weekend about 11:30pm driving home from work. | had a restricted permit and could
only drive to school and work so | would take the scenic route home because | wanted to go cruising,
and the chances of a police officer being on a dead-end street is very slim. Next Spring, if the
motorcycle club wants to take the scenic route on their way out to Hwy 92, and 50 Harley Davidsons

Leavenworth Planning Commission 12 December 4, 2023



want to drive up 19" Street and back down, they can. It is a public street and not owned by the
neighbors. | do understand where they are coming from. If | bought a house on a dead-end street,
I’d be like ah, no traffic or very little traffic. After the last meeting, | looked at realtor.com, and there
was a house pending in the 1800 block of Choctaw Street. Who is to say they aren’t going to open up
a home daycare for six kids. The next house that goes up for sale, | told my wife we are going to buy
it and open up a home daycare and no Special Use Permit needed. Then the next house for sale, I'm
going to buy it and rent it to someone who is going to open up a home daycare, and there is nothing
that “their community” can do about that.

With no one else wishing to speak, Chairman Homan called for discussion among the commissioners.

Commissioner Stephens stated he wants to remind everyone that we are talking about a Special Use
Permit to open a home daycare. We are not talking about their operations or if we think it is a good
daycare or a bad daycare. He further stated that he agreed with one of the speakers that if we tied it
to a tax incentive we would probably get more people to sign up for home daycares. Right now, there
is no benefit, and they do the best that they can but it should be advertised more, and maybe we can
do that.

Commissioner Stephens further stated that he appreciates the Police Department providing the data,
and understands that it may have some holes in it but he also has some subjective data. He had a 15-
18 minute conversation with a neighbor in the middle of the intersection of 19'" Street and Choctaw.
Not once did he fear for his, not once did a car drive by, and this was between 4:00pm and 4:30pm.
Asked one neighbor to the north how many times she had somebody block her in, and she said it
never happened. Also asked her if she noticed an increase in traffic, and she said not at all, and in fact
she really liked what they were doing and thought it ran pretty well. The neighbor directly next door
with a three-foot grass separation between the driveways, not enough to park a car, and even this
neighbor said that there hasn’t been any problems with cars blocking his driveway in the mornings or
in the afternoons. A couple different times in the mornings and in the evenings, Commissioner
Stephens went and parked in different areas in the neighborhood just to see the traffic for himself,
and he did not see anything. Sees things that are a lot more dangerous in his neighborhood behind
Henry Leavenworth School.

Chairman Homan stated the only comment he has is about the appraisals and the county’s
percentage, and it is not always sales that cause the increase. In 2022 and 2023, the interest rates
were lower so the values were higher. To factor an appraisal is done 3 ways: 1) cost approach, 2)
direct sales approach, and 3) income approach. On the cost approach, you look at 3 different kinds
of depreciation: 1) age-life depreciation, 2) functional obsolescence, and 3) economic obsolescence,
which is something outside your property causing loss and value to your property.

Commissioner Kem stated that one of the central issues she believes to be a concern of the residents
is the trafficissue. Agrees that the traffic study is not valid because there are four hours for two weeks
that have absolutely no traffic but there is enough information to be able to make an informed
decision. Traffic issues have been mitigated with the things that the owners are doing with the cones
and talking to the parents. Suggests to continue to have those conversations periodically, particularly
when new parents come in. Other concerns about home values and process believed to have all been
addressed so far.

With no further discussion, Chairman Homan called for a motion. Commissioner Stephens moved to

recommend approval to the City Commission for the Special Use Permit to allow the operation of a
home daycare at 1913 Choctaw, seconded by Commissioner Kem, and approved 5-1.

Leavenworth Planning Commission 13 December 4, 2023



Ms. Hurley stated this item will go to the January 9, 2024 City Commission for first consideration
ordinance.

Commissioner Stephens asked if public comment is allowed during that time.

Ms. Hurley responded that it is not a public hearing at the City Commission meeting. Generally, if the
City Commissioners know there are people wishing to speak they will go ahead and take comments
but it is not a public hearing.

OTHER BUSINESS:

With no other business, Ms. Hurley stated there will be a meeting on January 8, 2024.

Chairman Homan adjourned the meeting at 7:06 p.m.

Minutes taken by Planning Assistant Michelle Baragary.

Leavenworth Planning Commission 14 December 4, 2023



PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA ITEM
2024-01 SUP
300 N. 4" Street

FEBRUARY 5, 2024

SUBJECT:
A request for a Special Use Permit to allow a Gas Station in the North Neighborhood Overlay District.

Prepared By&.) J
Bethany Falvey
City Planner

NATURE OF REQUEST

The applicant, JK & Sons, LLC, is requesting a Special Use Permit to allow a gas station use in the North Neighborhood
Overlay District, located at 300 N. 4™ Street. Gas Stations are allowed in the North Neighborhood redevelopment
overlay district with the approval of a Special Use Permit.

There is an existing gas station on the property, that is considered a nonconforming use. Per section 1.05 of the
adopted Development Regulations:

Any nonconforming use shall not be physically extended, expanded, or enlarged.

The owner has requested a building permit to build an addition on the rear of the structure. The owner is requesting
the Special Use Permit to bring the property into conformance in order to enlarge their structure.

COMMISSION FINDINGS

The Commission may recommend issuance of a special use permit whenever it finds that:
1. The proposed special use complies with all applicable provisions of this ordinance.

Staff believes that this application complies with all provisions of City of Leavenworth Development
Regulations.

2. The proposed special use at the specified location will contribute to and promote the economic
development, welfare or convenience of the public.

The property is currently a gas station and has been since at least the early 2000’s in its current configuration.
It is one of the few gas stations within the downtown area and continued use will contribute to the economic
development, welfare and convenience of the public.

3. The special use will not cause substantial injury to the value of other property in the neighborhood in which
itis located.

Staff does not feel that the proposed use will cause any substantial injury to the value of other property in
the neighborhood as the property is current existing as a gas station.

4. The location and size of the special use, the nature and intensity of the operation involved in or conducted
in connection with it, and the location of the site with respect to streets giving access to it are such that the

CITY of LEAVENWORTH, KANSAS




special use will not dominate the immediate neighborhood so as to prevent development and use of
neighboring property in accordance with the applicable zoning district regulations.

The property owner is proposing a 400 square foot addition on the rear. The addition meets the rear setbacks
for the North Neighborhood overlay district.

Notification was sent to property owners within 200’ of the subject property, as required by Kansas statute. Since
notifications were mailed, staff has received no comments or inquiries.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends approval of the Special Use Permit request based on the analysis and findings included herein.

ACTION/OPTIONS:

e Motion, based upon findings as stated and conditions as presented, to recommend approval to the City
Commission with included conditions

e Motion, to recommend denial to the City Commission

e Table the issue for additional information/consideration.

CITY of LEAVENWORTH, KANSAS




OFFICE USE ONLY .
CASE NO.: XAV~ o\ SUP

- ,A i  Application No. \wseu
gy \\\_nm H_‘ i Fee (non-refundable) $350.00
PECIAL USE PERMIT Filing Date W23
CITY OF LEAVENWORTH, KANSAS | Resslpied By o T
' Hearing Date \/g[zyn
| Publication Date 1z /\a]23

As provided in Section 2.04 of the 2016 Development Regulations, application is hereby made for a
SPECIAL USE PERMIT for the operation of a: A 340 SF DDITION TO EXISTING GAS STATION

WITH COMPLETE FACELIFT

- in accordance with the attached site plan on the following described property:

Subject Property: | 30ON 4TH STREET

| Legal Description: (Attach a full legal description provided by the Register of Deeds Office)

Real Estate PID # |077-25-0-32-13-012.00-0

\
Zoning: R1-6 _ Historic District: |

_I/\We, the undersigned, depose and state we are the owners of the above described property:

' Name(s) of Owner (print): |JK & SONS LLC

Owner Address: 300 N 4TH STREET, LEAVENWORTH KANSAS 66048

Contact No. 816-888-9601 J' Email: iasifjaved2224@gmail.com ‘

i - r
Signature of Owner(s): —.HAILEtl:.MERCER |

| /JM (Toved Whaw) | NowyPubioNoaySesl |

‘State of _ MISY30 W ) : “CElaEyl cousnstyam i i
County of __ (LA ) (SEAL) | My Commission Expires June 27, 2027 |
0 = __Commission # 230123046 =

 Signed or attested before me on: [U ~[7A- 172

' Notary Public: ﬁﬂ,d_@j, SN

\J ,t <
My Appointment Expires: f‘),.\.( T l thz 1’

It' business is operated by someone other than the owner, provide name and address of operator(s).

- Name of Lessee: ' 'NOT APPLICABLE

i Address: —

Contact No. I | Email:

' NOTE: All signatures must be in ink. S|gnalure of owner(s) must be secured and notarized.
1 ' Check list below...

m . Non-Refundable Fee of $350. 00 Is due at time of application

{ Certified list of property owners within two hundred (200) feet of the sub;ect property

| Attach full legal description obtained through the Register of Deeds Office

5 |_Site Plan drawn to scale (See General Instructions)
v

Supporting documentation (See General Instructions)

Special Use Permit July

2020



e
A
— i h"
"ol"-
Y = 25 D Witk |8
___.-,...--' — / CONCRETE (TYP.} 1!
Sl = ; £
___.‘- /.-__.. \\ / 1 -; i
e P e ‘ : |
—_— =\ 5 H |
= i \ \ 1 !
/ -‘..- 2 i . 1' !
anw—"" \ |
g —19 —\ - ] 12° DA |
10" LA | ISTING CONC. _/COTLRETE
28— * “RETAINING WALL | ([ ] RO
(UNLINES ks - \ \ ! ‘)‘
= . . \ P L |_j‘.:.
'\ 6 SRACE. 813.51 = AL 1\ | L%
& |
i \
T IS LOCATED AT SOUTHEAST CORNER OF . = \ »
T ST s A \ BOLLARD DETAIL |
WIERSECTION \ W\ 8 T | |
- EXISTING \\ ENRE L \\
ECC_MNOTE
IHE BUILDING SHALL CONFGRM 10 THE FROVISIONS OF il DR’VE'\’AY C-STORE \ % \ \ \ | pevgn Growp 1
o e 2L ENERGY CONSERVANON COVE {IECC) . N BUILDING ., A\ =~ e
\ \_‘ =) 2190 5FT Y\ i | \ i 2 g
smucnon o : \ \ "\ 874.01 VLot s 125 : —
i \ \ [ FF 81405 \ Y \7 R LEGEND !
£ s W . \ \ 28PACES 1+ CONCRETE SURFACE |
NCE DOLS WGT NEED Tor \ \ \ ‘
‘ \ ‘l\\ \ \ NEW HUILDING ADDITIOR
H \ I L e
THE ASSUMED SPOT FLEVANION ¥ THE FINSHED FLOOR IS \ \ \ \ \ GRASS COVER
100 0 " \ - \‘ a. ACCESSIBLE PARKING SIGH
. GAS T e o
r {u RDOUS MATERIALS WL 85 WIHIN \ DUILDING OUTLIKE
r:”"l‘::“‘;‘?t NS PER TAGLE 307 1 (8 2517 \ \ CANOPY | \ \\ UILDI E
5 \ \‘ /\ T | = === PROPERTY LIKE %)
\ 1
\ 45 CE 1 : R 4
\_ ‘.\ . EXISTING \ \ FIRE HYDRAKT 5
'\ \ \ CONCRETE ’\ \ ® 4 DlA STEEL DOLLARDS ;
PROJECT SCOPE: \ \\ \ PARKING T g
t \ 3 (o]
1. REMOVE EXISTING METAL SIDING FCR THE AREA THE NEW EXISTII \ I | % 5 "
BUILDING ADDITION IS TO BE CONSTRUCTED. DRIVEWAY \ - \ ES 2
2. CONSTRUCT NEW/ 405 SF BUILDING ADDITION. \ \ \ e 2 E g
3 REMOVE EXISTING SIDEWALK WITH METAL FACING AROUND THE \ \ \ L__.- EE o g |
BUILDING AND REPLACE IT WITH NEW CONCRETE. ' — =" w9 @ =
4. RECONSTRUCT THE DAMAGED PARKING SURFACE AND INSTALL \ ——— e 03 5 E
NEW LANDSCAPING. . et g o zE
\ e EXISTING e b g
. —’__..---"" DRIVEWAY ! n(:g g u
4 i =
813.48 G 25 "8
= A .- Y0 =
‘ EXISTING
813.4. DRIVEWAY 2 g
@ . z
D
=
\) a
-
L i B = =
SITE PLAN |
e e =] -
& | "
813.42 LEGAL DESCRIPTION o ——
¢ : %) LEAVENWORTH, PLT ORIG, 525, TO, R22E, BLOCK 41, LOT 12- 16 (== )
ADA PARKING STALL_DETAILS PLAT BOOK/PAGE 1A /1 LOT WIDTH: 120.0 LOT DEPTII: 125.0 DEED
NTS BOOK/PAGE 08 /5444 1005/0565 0982/0178 0577/1288 0622/1330 C1




fipapn

B
HhET—

P

JK MART \ T e ] L

THHHL

ffidted

East Elevation’

Front Elevation
Scale 1/4"= 1'

o

TeCLE Ay ear
o e

SR8 Bitsd Rt B | 2tk

e

< 01

Rear Elevation
Scale 1/4"= 1"

West Elevation

EXTERION MATERIAL LEGEND:

CQNZRETL STUTCC
COLOIt - MATCH BRICK

BURNT CLAY BRICK VEHTTR
COLOM- ANTIQUE RED

MANUFACTURED STCNE VENZER - REGINCY
STACKEN STONE COLOR - BUSTY PANEL

ALUMINUM STORETRONT SYSTEM
MANUFACTURER « KAWHTER OR APPROVTD
EQUAL FINISH - ANODIZED ALUMPRI

OR FLUPROPCLOMER FEEESH

WALL MOUNTED LIGHT
MANUTACTURER - LUASIIS MAUTILUX NT 870
FIXTURE WITH 20 DEGREE CUT-CFF

< ety
TRRAT LA TCw CaTr Aivas 3G

INNOVATIVE JK MART GAS STATION

BUILDING
DESIGN & BUILDING ADDITION CONSTRUCTION PLANS el
RENOVATION i g
e me un ta

300 N 4TH STREET,

{816) 797-2065

(816) 531-2221

A2

LEAVENWORTH KANSAS




2a-ar

8% ALDAR © 4" OC
/ 13 eonniet Drmtac
FOOTHRG mie L
FOunBATgy (TP )

EXISTING
BUILDING

E A N e
oo Stud War wuh
Canerele Stucco ™~

|
H
. ) I—I .".'-. a4 .
’ r N
\ -6~ rock Lose
. \‘\

e dd Powers

-6 247

J-p4

Cont rafi—" -4 Stierups @

107 saecing

Foundation Elevation
secéign A-A

Foundation Plan
Scale 1/4"= 1’

CONNECT HASE PLATE

170AT 38T mSST
WiTH 1/27 ANCHOR BOLT

Couumrg .

1/2% STEEL FLATE™ T oas
WELDED 10 POLE TN [ RERsA Eac

4ower 6 9t ooc
A

d

1/27 DA B " ' . =3
ANCHOR BOLTS 6" R SN

2’=6"H2'-6"X18"

concite sua
OR CoLUMN

Column Foundalion Detall ~ rounoancs

fFamr—er—

e
o 1

CONTROL JOINT DETAIL

#5 Steei Bors@ 12° OC. 37 £pesy
Grouled in [he Fristing
Foungation ccnnect fo aow
Foungatizn Stee! (e )

NOTE \ e A \
USE DA 700" us
EPOXY GROUT FOR HEBARS \ \

Foundation Connection Detail
NTS

NOTES:

SEE SELT | FOR STRUCTURAL LOTES
PROVIDE 4* SLAF On GRADE. REUNFOSCE PEP PLAN

NEW FACE WALL SHALL BC CONSTAUCTCD OF 2° » 4* 22 b7 whab

STUDS 215' ON CENTER AND SHALL BE FASTENED WiTH DMISTING WALL
- 378" » 6" TREADCD FOLTS DVERY 3 Thi WALL SHALL BE
LCTED 0% THE EXISTING BUILDING FOOTING

MARL THUS. "C.J° INDICATES CONTROL JIINTS  FO:
c CL/CONSTRUCTION JOINTS € DETAIL On
€ FOISIBLE

TYPICAL
HIS SHIET CENTER

PARTITIONS
SLAB ON GRADE RECLSSES, SLOPLS, FLOZP DRaNS, Al

SLAE FINISHES, SEC ARCMITECTURAL DRAVINGS

MARK THUS "C1" INDICATES COLUMM MARY, SEC SCHIDULE 04 SHEET €3

PINCHSIDNS ARE 1O OUTSIDE FACC OF FOUNDATION WALL. LILESS KMOTED
£awISE

"IW-1t INDICATES SnEas waLL TION  REFER 10 SMiA2 wary
SCHEDULE On IHEET €3 PO WALL CONSTRUCTIDN REGUIREMENTS

EXTERIDA WALLS IMALL EC TWEAR WALLS CONSTRUCTED PIR T &
ELEVATICH DETAIL AN SCMIDULT SMIWh On SHICT 53

VERIFY ALL DIMENSIDNS WITH ARCHITECTURAL DRAWINGS

¥

=

Bewign Growp uC
E -
Rte 122

Mares parte
[CE e

e

300 N 4TH STREET,
LEAVENWORTH,KANSAS

JK MART GAS STATION

BUILDING ADDITION CONSTRUCTION PLANS

FOUNDATION
PLAN

[T— 2023126 |
¥RA

— G




29°-4*

L

EXISTING
BUILDING

@

LEGEND
[EEENE] SHEAR WALL LOCATION

HOTE:
TIE THE RAFTERS WITH USP H2.5 HANGERS.

2 i

TYE. HEADER DT
T

ML CALw oE
CaUree. oty

Roof Plan

Scale 1/4"= 1"

L COLUe TR M
Pubn PDS ALTITIOML
o P

1 30 tias
BAT Ml waled® v/
(MICEEnt ant 3 120

KOTE:
SEE SHEET 54 FOR SECTIONS A-A AND BB

et
e wenat
S N | |1

Y

Ko 8t —
M-S =

bany L —

SHEAR WALL ELEVATION
T

oy ear

FHAVL AL SR 4D UL VI MmN

B oRe PP GHIL D M massaI1S(E PP TRt £t

e g e TeT e
BLEvATDG TUCvalin o (hariidy 4t Cllrich

et

HEADIR SCHEDULE

COMMENTS

R ]

LR RS

SHEAR WALL SCHWEDULE

ASK | IMCATHDNG nALT

= e
e bae

* Ayt asiem

BRIt B e e

L R AR P TR TR
Fi i 1 TS B DT

1 OEL L T P it s W

oo pn bdes wald Yl WK o8 N

1
m-:-a'—/ ;

~.
——— L 0y R reTD3 e
HETuiln Sorrcats i 1c
INRLATE TRA
G 13 sal. o

TYP. ROOF SHEHG. MAILING PATTERN
ATT

JK MART GAS STATION
BUILDING ADDITION CONSTRUCTION PLANS

Cesign Graup LLC
FAT L B Paut

Sete 17
Sasese Ty Mames €411
=

300 N 4TH STREET,
LEAVENWORTH,KANSAS

ROQF PLAN AND
DETAILS

Pt bt 1023120

i T
GV

S3




300 N 4" Street — Street view 10/23/23




PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA ITEM
2024-04-SUP
920 N. 14t Street

FEBRUARY 5, 2024
SUBJECT:

A request for a Special Use Permit to allow a two-family dwelling in the R1-6 zoning district.

Prepared By&) 0

Bethany Falvey
City Planner

NATURE OF REQUEST

The applicant, Stieger Family Trust, is requesting a Special Use Permit to allow a two-family dwelling in the R1-6
zoning district, located at 920 N. 14" Street. Two-family dwellings are allowed in the R1-6 zoning district with the
approval of a Special Use Permit. The property is currently a quarter acre, vacant lot. A two-story house was on the
property previously, but it was demolished in 2009.

The applicant is seeking the Special Use Permit to build a duplex.

COMMISSION FINDINGS

The Commission may recommend issuance of a special use permit whenever it finds that:
1. The proposed special use complies with all applicable provisions of this ordinance.

Staff believes that this application complies with all provisions of City of Leavenworth Development
Regulations.

2. The proposed special use at the specified location will contribute to and promote the economic
development, welfare or convenience of the public.

If approved, the property will fill a need in the community by adding a two-family housing option.

3. The special use will not cause substantial injury to the value of other property in the neighborhood in which
itis located.

Staff does not feel that the proposed use will cause any substantial injury to the value of other property in
the neighborhood.

4. The location and size of the special use, the nature and intensity of the operation involved in or conducted
in connection with it, and the location of the site with respect to streets giving access to it are such that the
special use will not dominate the immediate neighborhood so as to prevent development and use of
neighboring property in accordance with the applicable zoning district regulations.

The proposed new structure is a two-story duplex. it was a historically developed lot and this will not
dominate the immediate neighborhood.

CITY of LEAVENWORTH, KANSAS




Notification was sent to property owners within 200’ of the subject property, as required by Kansas statute. Since
notifications were mailed, staff has received no comments or inquiries.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends approval of the Special Use Permit request based on the analysis and findings included herein.

ACTION/OPTIONS:

Motion, based upon findings as stated and conditions as presented, to recommend approval to the City
Commission with included conditions

Motion, to recommend denial to the City Commission

Table the issue for additional information/consideration.

CITY of LEAVENWORTH, KANSAS



ECEIVE JFFICE USE ONLY
ASE NO.: X024\ - 64\ SUP
DEC 12
o C1 2023 Application No. \QK
r VORTH b Leavenworth Planning &
;JL\__S Community Developmen Hee (non-refundable) $350.00
SPECIAL USE PERMIT Filing Date 2| 1zlza
CITY OF LEAVENWORTH, KANSAS Receipted By R’!L)
Hearing Date Y (s 124
Publication Date \[ulzy

As provided in Section 2.04 of the 2016 Development Regulations, application is hereby made for a

SPECIAL USE PERMIT for the operation of a: A\ ZONN A

\LI‘;)\P_‘J‘L ey A L

in accordance with the attached site plan on the following described property:

Subject Property:

a26 N |

[ Ot [ avedworrd Ks_ 66048

Legal Description:

(Attach a full legal description provided by the Register of Deeds Office)

Real Estate PID #:

R

Zoning:

Histaric District:

| I/We, the undersigned, depose and state we are the owners of the above described property:

Name(s) of Owner (print):

J7 leger Fzm, /V /Vu_s?" Lee R St egev, [rushhe

Owner Address:

& 723 (Q/u

Y /\E’-/VC,MW&L ‘/'Lm HS beO4s

Contact No.

T13-£83-0!3!

Email:

/}"6‘1( ey e € wels C-G/_JQ; et

/Bf@,ﬂ/ﬁpé’—’ e

Signature of Owner(s):

@

State of XCZMSQ 5

)

County of /~ e ven wolrth )

DIANA L. MORRISEY
2 Notasy Public - Stale of
| MyAppt Expires }|* 7] * 2035

1 lal=i

(SEAL)

Signed or attested before me on: ,U lama i W/o )'IJIM.QABI//'

Notary Public: Digno, L. . MNorcisey

My Appointment Expires: 11* 071+ .0 25

If business is operated by someone other than the owner, provide name and address of operator(s).

Name of Lessee:

Ee_ o Al

Address:

12,7 AT G S£ 7@/\@/[9.& dﬁw 97052"

Contact No.

2/ I e

Emall

elIc, . pATY .

demal, Com

Check list below...

NOTE: All signatures must be in ink. Signature of owner(s) must be > secured and notarized.

Non-Refundable Fee of $350.00 is due at time of application

Certified list of property owners within two hundred (200) feet of the subject property

Attach full legal description obtained through the Register of Deeds Office

Site Plan drawn to scale (See General Instructions)

Supporting documentation (See General Instructions)

Planning Commission

wn

SUP Application Rev. 7/20




Leavenworth County, KS

Legend
Address Point
Parcel Number
Lot Line
Parcel
City Limit Line

Major Road
<&l other valygs>

=a 70

Road
<all other values>

—  PRIVATE
—+ Railroad

Section
[] Section Boundaries
[CJ County Boundary

57.1 Feet This Cadastral Map s for Informational purposes only. It does not purport to
reprasent a property boundary survey of the parcals shown and shallnotba |
usad for conveyances or the establishment of property boundaries,

THIS MAP 18 NOT TO BE USED FOR NAVIGATION




| EAVENWBRTH COUuNTY, (S, < JF'

TR

N HTH ST

| wWw—— _F
[ =0
AWNEE ST S
| | P ) —— __/'/_..\— — — — — _— — Ay —
| 5 -
! “lle 26" FRom HpAD CLIME
‘ “lo _mﬂ?ﬁﬁae CLEA:Jtau'r i.a' = . 4
R AT - 1. i
LT o e Po [} X
| —fw ® S‘J;‘;i’“f Bwe f.-:’; Eeizz 'E;;. exT walls \rs )
ONE LevEL (Qlf‘oqs‘i H‘) t\? 3
’ k’ DWELLING | /
N I (= \
X
I P & b
\ ! !FF‘ | EX\STING -ﬂu:t'—
| . _‘aﬁ- P!?.:JOOSED PrPwaHcH @— 2% o
| ( ﬁ:?f:? , W,/' ' Papposed 3 CAR CARAGE - - .
T 2655 | 1'x3% =
| :é\ 5D é———r'— E
! “@Jﬂ ; ;—-‘i "'iO . quﬂd& <
| ']) ] i '@ %—t? 1
i 5 L - e S "y
[q20 N (471 T, | . e ,
; ; ' r 6‘5 ]
 NleAaorn ks s ) 33 b
e A -
lc m&}qﬁ?aus Q74 E(Zom-fvee 4o ‘!’VQC_. »3(; \

| q"=27'



JPSTAIRS




ABBAESS QL0 W, (4T 5T
PROPOSED DUPLEY BLA
4752 S0 4. mpi BLDG.

LEO I &k SHoP BLD A,

LEAVEN wiaTH cD, WG, Uik

iy

AlLey Rp

v 5 1 T

oA
{ f -
95T LA
et ]
I [ e
S DO P R A N St | I
. : 57 |
Lol J/{’C)& 2 & N
J J
| zx S |
g 15
, ~ -
% & 'ﬁ |
3 Tolat A0 9,106 T4 b . J
E 2 earl GL\Y:; J Srony :ﬂ 2*
| .3 =y
- b : g il
P — A , ’
¥—ns ——,‘Jre o 25 |
APPRE B CH i
2, i ﬂ | , |
J L 1
! ‘ | a7 |
PRoPERTY L E ? I %
Rilk ( 10Mc¢m’s& ‘ t
{ '!'J § CLEAN ouT | {
S /IZ’ s fzf J' l
I

o v Al L LN N %

R SN

1
_!
I
l
!

-

i

|

)






920 N 14th Street

SV W B

PAWNEE sn- NN

N
‘é‘\t

o

7

e

12/12/2023, 11:30:03 AM
F"-“1
Override 1 lmemed Leavenworth City Limits
| Parcels_Current City Right-of-Way

Address (Points) RoadCenterline

Esri, HERE, Garmin, (¢} OpenStreetMap contributors, and the GIS user
community

Web AppBuilder for ArcGIS
Platie County, Missouri Dept. of Conservalion, Esri, HERE, Garmin, GeoTechnologies, Inc., USGS, EPA|




R e

¥*2016
Doc #:  2016RCG818

" LEAVENHORTH™ COUNTY- -
RECORDED ON

Entered in the ‘ransfer record in my office this 08/09/2016 02:13PH
t_“!f_*‘- Lo - 0 RECORDING FEE: 15.00
Qs N ) LaIXDINCR INDEBTEDNESS: 0.00
o ty Clerk PES: 1
Enfgredlis s teorpiersasony, s = ™oy ittg h i
1

R109

Doc 8: 2010R10988

STACY R. DRISCOLL/REGISTER OF DEEDS
LEAVENWORTH COUNTY

u‘"y Cla~

Beny Re-fpcorded v =dd 3 ’r’””" 12/17/2010 04:32PH
SHERIFF'S DEED RECORDING FEE: 8.00

INDEBTEDNESS: 0.00
KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, THAT a certaln action to foreclose tax liens on certain rd3@k8pert} in the
County of Leavenworth. State of Kansas. has heretofore been filed in the Diatrict Coust of Leavenworth County.
Kansas, and is titted: The Board of County Commissioners of Leavenworth County. Kansas v. Bridges. Allan. et al,
Case No. 2010 CV 391: and Judgment was thereafter rendered by said court in the above entitied action on 22
October, 2010.

In compliance with, and pursuant to this Judgment, the Clerk of the District Court of Leavenworth County. Kansas,
issued an order to Sherifl David Zoeilner, Sheriff of Leavenworth County. Kansas. to advertise and sell tracts of land.
lots. or pleces of real estate described below. all according to law.

The Leavenworth County Sheriff gave notice of this sale by advertisement and publication notice of sale in The
Tonganoxie Mirror newspaper printed in Leavenworth County. Kansas. and which had been continuously and
uninterruptedly published in Leavenworth County. Kansas. not less than fifty (50) weeks for a period of five years
prior to the first publication notice, all according to the law. The Leavenworth County Sheriff, David Zoellner.
thereafter sold to Stieger Family Trust for the highest and best bid obtainable on 15 December 2010, the following
described real property; for the amount shown by each particular tract, lot, or piece of real estate.

DESCRIPTION: LOTS NUMBERED EIGHT (8), NINE (9), TEN (10), AND ELEVEN (11) IN BLOCK NUMBERED
FOUR (4) IN FENN'S FAIRGROUND SUBDIVISION OF THE CITY OF LEAVENWORTH, LEAVENWORTH
COUNTY, KANSAS.

CAMA No. 078-27-0-10-08-006-00-0

Price: $5500.00

THEREAFTER, on the 15th day of December, 2010, the order of sale and the proceedi;tgs of sale were retumed to
the Leavenworth County District Court and after examination of the proceedings, and finding that the sale was made

in all respects in conformity with the law applicable, the District Court of Leavenworth County confirmed the sale, and
the proceedings made thereto. on the 17th day of December 2010.

THEREAFTER, and according to law. the Sheriff of Leavenworth County was ordered to execute this good and fn
sufficient deed to the purchaser(s) Stleger Family Trust. Felrua r ¥ 16, 1927 Py

THEREFORE, |, David Zoellner, Sheriff of Leavenworth County, Kansas do hereby, give. grant. sell and convey to §
Stieger Family Trust, their heirs and assigns forever, all the above-described real estate located in Leavenworth -

e County, Kansas, together with afl and singular tenements, hereditaments and appurtenances thereto or in any way
appertaining. subject to zoning regulations, easements. restrictions. and minera! interests of record.

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD THE SARME UNTO SAID Stegar Family Trust, their heirs and assigns forever.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, |, David Zoeliner. Sheriff of Leavenworth County, State of Kansas. have hereunto set my

David Zoellner
Sheriff of Leaven

County. Kansas

$S:

LY ‘m supmet\t'was acknowledged before me the
Sheriftof, Ee_ivémnl'uCo . Kansas.

My Appointment Expires:

SEND TAX STATEMENTS (AND RETURN) TO: Stieger Family Trust. 623 Clive St, Leavenworth. KS 86048

Leavenworth County, Register of Deads 2016R06818

_.STACY R. DRISCOLL/REGISTER OF DEEDS

Ga3olve
LY KJ




City of Leavenworth
Property Radlus Search )

P

JANSEN
BROTHERS
LLC

mmsmamme N A,
R

-
. HERRING

CGLEMAN-« ;&— 5
Fare g

STIEGER
FAMILY
TRUST

-

o I
m——
‘EMJ'\NN

200" Buffer
Parcel Searched

Parcels in Buffer
1 Fll
 — E City Limits

052-078-27-0-10-09-006.00-0

2022 Aerial Photo 920 N 14TH ST, Leavenworth, KS 66048




PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA ITEM
2023-26-SUB

LUXURY ADDITION
FINAL PLAT

FEBRUARY 5™, 2024

SUBJECT:
A request for a final plat of Luxury Addition Final Plat

Prepared By
Julie Hugey,

Directgh of Planning and
Community Development

ANALYSIS:

The subject property is owned by Rea Holdings, LLC, plat prepared by Atlas Surveying. The applicant is requesting
the plat in order to divide their current unplatted property into two lots, as well as incorporate portions of land
that were purchased from Citizens Savings & Loan to the west, and K & L Leasing to the north. The plat also
includes the dedication of access easements for the use of Citizens Savings & Loan, and K & L Leasing. The plat
includes a total of 2.5 acres.

The property is occupied by Luxury & Imports, and is zoned GBD, General Business District. The existing
automotive related use is an allowed in the GBD zoning district.

The subject plat was reviewed by the Development Review Committee on January 4%, 2024. A number of
technical items related to the plat were discussed at that time. The plat has also been reviewed by the
Leavenworth County Surveyor and Register of Deeds. All items identified by the DRC and Leavenworth County
staff have been addressed, or will be addressed, prior to recording of the plat.

Staff recommends approval of Luxury Addition Final Plat.

ACTION/OPTIONS:
e Approve the Final Plat

e Deny the Final Plat
e Table the issue for additional information/consideration.

CITY of LEAVENWORTH, KANSAS




JOFFICE USE ONLY

Project No. X023-2(o SUB ﬁ«zz_lic%ﬁgbl\l‘oéb\‘-\oaﬁ

MINOR SUBDIVISION Date ‘ggff Pl ﬁﬁl"gg over 5 lots)
FINAL PLAT APPLICATION A
CITY OF LEAVENWORTH .

PC Meeting Stz 2 [5[2q

NAME OF SUBDIVISION/PROJECT: L uxer 2, -[-:s
LOCATION OF SUBDIVISION/PROJECT:
NAME OF PROPERTY OWNER: (If Corporation, include name and address of Director or President)
NAME: Eea l:lolA wnes LLC ;
STREET ADDRESS: 5229 % 4Th 44 et
CITY: 4, state:. A4 zr; L6048
PHONE: Q1|3-772-7200D EMAIL:
NAME OF DEVELOPER: (If Corporation, include name and address f Director or President)

NAME: Rea Houmqs LLC / Freaidet 7ol Fas

STREETADDRESS: 52265 4 ")Th 5‘ ceet
ory: _Leavenwerth, STATE: K5 ZIP: @(QO 48

PHONE: §|2-T7Z2-TZQ0  EMAIL; 4o orks
NAME OF ENGINEER PREPARING PLAT: (1l 915-233 '76 =)

NAME: A ndcea (Je; 4y au'o‘l‘ / A'“a 5 Auruensiaa

STREET ADDRESS: 2300 HH m?:l_' Luite 108 -

oty _Aansas Ly STATE: _}4 zP: _66[09
COMPANY: Mlas !)wve_w.na.
PHONE: C?l%-702.-50‘[3 EMAIL n : ul:)'l‘ . ocs,Com

PARCEL NO: QY |R02 060007000 SEC.TWPRNG. |R-F-23F

ZONING OF SUBJECT PROPERTY: (52 B! 2 CURRENT LAND USE: Co.m MErc e )

TOTAL ACREAGE: 2,508/ NUMBER OF LOTS: ]

LEGAL DESCRIPTION: (Attach full recorded legal description provided by the REGISTER OF DEEDS OFFICE)

DATE OF FINAL PLAT APPROVAL, IF REPLAT:

1/We, the undersigned, certify that I/we am/are the owner of the property described above and that is subject to this request for
review of a subdivision under the rules of the Subdivision Regulations of the City of Leavenworth, Kansas.

SIGNATUR OWNER(S)

rhll. K i . Date: B -1-23
County of ' P@WOM )95 |
- 2025 by '
l 0’0?"'&’] JESSICA DALRYMPLE

) . Public, State of Kansas
Appointment Expires @ 4 NO&:}' e é’ne o p.?es
1 .~+_“" 1at App. July 2020
p. July




LUXURY ADDITION o —N

e
- e Amvron ot st .g,w,wwrw...,.;. W 3510 1 413, T AR LA AT, NS RO -~
A TRACT OF LAND IN THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 18, TOWNSHIP 9 SOUTH, RANGE 23 EAST sl el sy AN
OF THE 6TH P M, IN THE CITY OF LEAVENWORTH, LEAVENWORTH COUNTY, KANSAS %

Y CONSULTING
fm“&h‘:h"s‘f?;ﬁﬁaw-..wmmm TN 184523 e ;:IB:..LM-".“‘B&{’L::_.
Ri:”:‘: 80 FEET WEST SOUTHWEST 10 *+7 CUT IN CURS IN LINE WITHEAST FACE OF BUILDING TO SOUTH /—-\ el iy

R G - MINOR SUBDIVISION
|§:t{¥ E?SJJI.EOASI '{ﬂu\'(nrlswl:;g;wﬁcmlul|rum‘hr ﬂﬁl’akm\' OF INTERSECTION R
| 55;32;::;.‘.*.2;:?3"‘“ R T % e LEGEND
1 Toa cndaraqond srapemir of o sraearty e 00

| UNPLATTED 1

s lama g
e m.rm..-...m

@ setardansa wan prasesed impe
o o attont e rfatomen of sy wah

FOUND 1/7° REBAR WITH CA LS

UMESS NOTED O

RIS

SET PROPERTY CORNER 1/1° AEBAR WITH ALC CAP
The

arag o o

v ot e st

rod ot Yok corodos 314 pretc o Cy Gl

s

‘BOe

e FOUND SECTION CORNER AS NOTED
eveeed b4 s Aadsnd Tt pusie warh A1d e e e e e e
& foerr > e i gl meitegm g ymbansog e Je et o s MEASURE
] T cvm f 8 s 1 ot 4t s sl hars s 30 S 1 resrctens whah il b Ssscd 544 108 ara e o oeen
| i L A N A T DR S i as
5 Nt ACCESS EASE

= ¥

= 8

4 e 1N P ae v B Bia___ ear ot

2 i I PUAT 0 Lt A0 3 LSRN 1A APPACHC Y T LA T

2 & Pl Coan vor n_

o NE7*I00TE 157.92(MA0)

2

Craman E E
1 T WAES 1R T8 REARING SYSTI PO T FLAT 15 THE <ANGAS ROATH 1508 0.5 57,
2 dnrc 14 g Dances i i
g =l om PANEL WMBAL J0I2CE 104G,
= S T3 RLAT 1 LGEATID [ FONES -
E \ . ARy n AT
i Comaiy Mu-m -t GINSS CISTIOCT

B o_ beroas e, Tk UnDERSGAES, RECTON O Rus(KC WoRS o 510 O BT 1 1 v 1161 300
i+ E nx | e AR 'a QUADRANT INTERSE & GswEs
g 3 \ £55 EASEMEN Xer 15 TE TGATEANG WATRGRN

& R \ : N OF e, 1% TESTIMONT WHUAIOH, |
2 g ooty : ‘ T e B
e 3 i i 7. 0 THTLE oA WAS PRCVIGED G 15 BURVIY.
3 i | NI SRS,
- | notay rume = =
z 2\ I

#l L S—
|& 1
e [

LD SUVEY EOHPLETLO Y ATLAS LIRS At 20
- BOAT

e marw 4l WATH

TR s 1

s56s o 11t e e s L e
oy i A I hose
g I O - wid o _.mc”:.wm:nl
o — . e i
! i 1L ) Lot e & L ACOITION b ot s Sants iy e e SEPAAATE BT 708 T
& o o) r AT CE OA 11 -l m-g-‘.—li-\.
3 LOT 2 2i |2
€ 8| | T LI o R VICINITY MAP
nasezssie
prerich il E| 1 | 2.96 ACRES : e e —

LCOAD s THE RECISTES &8 01
STATE Of cantas R —
o

TG S
- [ G
OF WAITIN A OLLr ACENOW, EOCED Tot X N TeaTo o

o O Sant. D =
S AD AFFEKED 4 AR S T O AN TEAR ABOVE
MATATT T4 AT~

{ NaTALY PURIC

oy Commaanan
ANE 173 83(MAD)

. - n TESTIMONY meaLOF
AT 17 IS oot

sz
|

ACCESS EASEMENT

4 LHLAY BODITICN ave bt i hanit Pa wrw
VR0 —

A T ARAGING VIR, GAIG WAL

SBESI95W 10,76

ACHNGWLEDCE T

3 UNPLATTRE ACCESS EASEME gla 1 SIATE OF eANTAS
| - L 1 Rk g; i ror
2 b= nl® " o
E 7|3 5 BEFORE mE. Tl LADIASICNED.
I Eoi LOT:1 ACCESS EAS | - Stintn Ya
g " 139835,32 5Q FT il 3 i o it
|4 3.21 ACRES % u;\-(:s\,\ 50" Y AN R AFPLEED ¥ NGTART SEA. 1 OAY AND YEAR A
: NoTARTPUBIC .
My Commmran € ThiS 16 10 Cerbiy o this IND day OF JANUARY, 2024 this eid survey mas
" o compioted o the ground by me or under my direct supenvision and that
said burvey meets Or eRceRds the “NKansas Mimmum Standan
poundary surveys
| s .
I R 37588

S8B070 51W 51749
GF WAY LT L1SEr O

TR RIG ROAD PER KDG

36 40°W 5,00

T ROCGER B DL (S 1e08
o0 a 123-2
ROW PLANS PROJECT MO 13-52 L WTer oL 1 sl u—/ 2 P SCALEJOB NO ;;E::RED FOR
L 0219 o - 5
55418 _ CENTERLINE EISENHOWER ROA o — — - oo T \/\ ‘: \’Dsguh-mﬂ:_.){‘uu(r
e g i = o SECTION 189 NORTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION
29 ¥ 73
OF COMMENCEMENT
- MOMUMENT #1.5 |

Ao COMMER O NOATHINEST QUARTER OF SECTION 14:8:23

50

RENCE .
1. 7066 FEET NORTHEAST T0 CHISELED "+

SEC-TWN-RNG | LUXURY AND IMPORTS
Pt ,
T e LED 47 I % S240FEET EAST WEST FACE % & 5739 5 ATH ST TRIWY,
CORMER OF CONCRETE SIGHAL : STEEL COANER POS
3. 2045 FEET SOUTHWEST T0 CHISELED "+ TN SOUTHWEST 30,50 FEET EAST |uu~l|m|r4:
R Le] 10 HISELED * [N SOUTEAST

18-09-23 LEAVENWORTH, K5 66048
OF MIGHWAY "5
COANER OF CONCRETE SIGNAL BASE

DATE
e NOVEMBER 8, 2023
€40 1AL . 3 Uit Land COMURAGITIII1.208 Lty Impots Py Adoton 920

REVISED: JANUARY 31, 2024




2023-26-SUB

e

LY e st

: e

1y

i

v
i

\

\

]

2/1/2024, 11:32:29 AM

i o

\\\\Q};\RD ““*’{\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\W _ RS

ot =

TR E&EISENHOWER RD

1:2,257
0 0.01 0.03 0.05 mi
L ! I 1 1 1 1
} : : : T : : :
0 0.02 0.04 0.09 km

Esri, HERE, Garmin, (c) OpenStreetMap contributors, and the GIS user
community

Web AppBuilder for ArcGIS
Platte County, Missouri Dept. of Conservation, Esri, HERE, Garmin, GeoTechnologies, Inc., USGS, EPA |



2023-26-SUB Area Added to Luxury Property

X5

. .
>

e i e s

l .

2/1/2024, 11:29:44 AM

T3 T
5035 o = |

0 0.01 0.03 0.05 mi

[ -, 1

I I T 1

0 0.02 0.04 0.09 km

Esri, HERE, Garmin, (c) OpenStreetMap contributors, and the GIS user
community

Web AppBuilder for ArcGIS
Platte County, Missouri Dept. of Conservation, Esri, HERE, Garmin, GeoTechnologies, Inc., USGS, EPA |



PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA ITEM
Text Amendments
Development Regulations

FEBRUARY 5, 2024

Prepareg/By:

Julie Hyfley,

Director of Planning and
Community Development

DISCUSSION:

The Development Regulations were adopted by the City Commission in June, 2016 after a year-long
comprehensive update process. Through the daily use of the Regulations by staff, several minor items have
arisen that may necessitate possible updating. This process is not uncommon, and it is anticipated that an
annual review of the Development Regulations will be performed in order to ensure that they remain up to date
and comprehensive. Many of the proposed amendments consist of clarifying existing language, with no
substantial policy change. The following modifications have been drafted by staff and are now presented for
public hearing and vote.

e Article 1; General Provisions
- Remove specific dates by which regulations and updated zoning map must be prepared each year.
All documents are updated as changes are made throughout the year.

e Article 2; Applications & Procedures
- Add requirement that applicants provide two full sized copies of all recorded plats.
- Move Article 6; Landscaping and Article 8; Signs to the jurisdiction of Board of Zoning Appeals for
variance requests in lieu of City Commission.

o Article 4; Zoning Districts & Standards

- Add provision that adjacent right-of-way width may not be counted towards the minimum lot width
requirement.

- Add provision to allow three detached accessory structures on parcels two acres or larger.

- Add specific setback requirements for pools.

- Add Solar Arrays as permitted accessory use.

- Remove Solar energy facilities from requirement for Special Use Permit.

- Change language regarding signage for home occupations to reference regulations in Article 8;
Signs.

e Article 5; Access & Parking
- Add provision to allow alternative paving materials as acceptable parking surface for single-family
dwellings.

e Article 6; Landscape & Site Design
- Change wording of “areas” or “properties” to “uses” for consistency.
- Remove minimum height requirement for residential uses abutting a commercial or industrial use.

CITY of LEAVENWORTH, KANSAS




- Revise language related to fencing around a pool to reference applicable building code.
- Remove specific requirements for decorative fences in the CBD.

e Article 7; Design Standards
- Change language referencing “two feet 18 inches” to “3 feet 6 inches” for clarity.
- Clarify language regarding maximum driveway width for residential properties.

e Article 8; Signs

- Revise size computation standards for multi-face signs.

- Correct all references to “free standing” signs to “freestanding”.

- Refine regulations related to directional signage to include directional wall signs.

- Refine language related to neighborhood identification signs to include term “development” in
order to clarify that regulations also apply to multi-family developments.

- Refine language related to projecting signs for clarity.

- Add provision to allow wall signage for businesses without an exterior wall fronting a public ROW.

- Change language related to variance requests to indicate that such requests be made to the Board
of Zoning Appeals.

e Article 9; Historic Preservation
- Remove section related to variances, redundant.

e Article 10; Supplemental Standards
- Refine language related to Solar Arrays for clarity.

e Article 12; Definitions
- Move definitions for Manufactured Home and Mobile Home so that they are with all other
definitions for various types of dwellings, for consistency.
- Add definition for “Shelter Home”.

e Appendix A; Use Table
- Require SUP for Manufactured Dwellings in R1-9, R1-7.5, and R1-6.
- Add use category of Shelter Home.
- Require SUP for Private Wind Energy Systems in all zoning districts for consistency with
requirements of Article 4.

ACTION/OPTIONS:

Recommend approval or denial of proposed text amendments for final action by the City Commission.

CITY of LEAVENWORTH, KANSAS




DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS
ARTICLE 1. GENERAL PROVISIONS

1.02 Administration

5, Administrative Staff. The Director is responsible for the enforcement of this
Ordinance. Implementation and administration of the provisions of the Development
Regulations shall be the responsibility of the administrative officials listed throughout
these Development Regulations. Administrative staff duties will include, but are not
limited to, the following:

a. Scheduling and conducting inspections of buildings, structures, and uses of
land to determine compliance with the provisions of the Development
Regulations.

b. Maintaining permanent and current records of the Development Regulations,

including, but not limited to, all zoning district maps, amendments, special
uses, variances, exceptions, appeals and applications therefore and records
of hearings thereon.

(o} Preparing and having available in book, pamphlet, or map form-en-erbefore
March-31-of eachyear:
(1) The compiled text of the zoning regulations and amendments thereto,

including all amendments adopted-threugh-the-preceding-Decembera4,

and

(2) A zoning district map or maps, showing the zoning districts, divisions,
and classifications in effect-en-the-preceding-December31.

d. Maintaining for distribution to the public paper and electronic copies of the
zoning district map, the text of the Development Regulations and the bylaws,
agendas and meeting minutes of the Planning Commission and the Board of
Zoning Appeals.

e. Providing such clerical, technical, and consultative assistance as may be
required by the City Commission, Planning Commission, Board of Zoning
Appeals, Preservation Commission and other boards or commissions in the
exercise of their duties relating to these Development Regulations.

f. Preparing and distributing hearing notices as required.

a. Providing information, clerical, technical, and consultative assistance to
developers and property owners with regard to the application process and
requirements of this ordinance generally.

6. Leavenworth Preservation Commission. The Leavenworth Preservation Commission
authority and procedures are established in Article 9.

B. Schedule of Fees. The Schedule of Fees and Charges for any applicable fees shall be on file
with the City Clerk according to all city ordinances.
1.03. Interpretation
A Rules of Construction. In interpreting these regulations, the following rules shall apply:
1. Words used in the present tense shall include the future.
1 - 4

LEAVENWORTH, KANSAS
ReEvisep 2016



DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS

ARTICLE 2. APPLICATIONS & PROCEDURES

2.02 Platting
I Disposition of Final Plats. After the plat has been recorded. the applicant shall
provide two full-sized copies of the recorded plat to the Department of Planning
and Community Development
4. Minor Subdivision. Minor subdivisions shall be processed according to the following

criteria and procedures.

a.

Criteria. An application may be classified as minor subdivision if the Director
determines that all of the following are met. Any application not classified as a
minor subdivision shall be processed as a major subdivision.

(1) No new street or alley right-of-way, or other public dedication is needed.

(2) No significant increase in service requirements (utilities, schools, traffic
control, streets, etc.), or the ability to maintain existing service levels will
result.

(3) The application results in five or fewer new lots, including any remainder
parcel.

(4) All lots meet the legal standards of the subdivision regulations and
applicable zoning districts.

(5) The lot patterns are consistent with the surrounding area. In determining
consistency, the size and dimension of lots previously developed, the
layout and design of existing subdivisions and rights of way, and the
degree of deviation from previous development shall be considered.

(6) No other significant issues exist with potential development enabled by
the plat that could impact planning policies, development regulations or
adjacent property owners.

Filing Requirement. A minor subdivision shall include all applicable information
required for final plats.

Review and Approval. Within 60 days after submission of a plat, the Planning
Commission shall approve, disapprove, conditionally approve, or with approval of
the applicant, table the plat. If the Planning Commission approves the plat, the
plat shall have house numbers assigned and shall be recorded with the office of
the Leavenworth County Register of Deeds.

The plat shall be recorded with the Register of Deeds within 18 months of
approval by the Planning Commission. Plats which are not recorded within said
time period shall be deemed null and void.

Disposition of Final Plats. After the plat has been recorded, the applicant shall

provide two full-sized copies of the recorded plat to the Department of Planning
and Community Development

5. Major Subdivision

a.

Preliminary Plat. A preliminary plat shall be processed according to the following
criteria and procedures.

IR

LEAVENWORTH, KANSAS
Revised 2022



DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS
ARTICLE 2. APPLICATIONS & PROCEDURES

2.08 Minor Modifications

6. A change to a development feature already modified through a variance or other minor
maodification; or

7. Any change in the maximum area of signage.
8. No more than two standards may be modified on any single development project;

Criteria. The review and approval of a minor modification is administrative and shall not require
any form of notice or a public hearing prior to determination. The following criteria shall be met
for a minor modification:

1. Evidence of substantial compliance with the provisions of the Comprehensive Land Use
Plan, any other applicable city plans and the Development Regulations;

2. Compatibility with surrounding land uses; and
Appeal. Appeal of the Director's determination shall be to the Development Review Committee.

Approval Termination. An approved minor modification terminates at the same time as the
original approval. Minor madification of an approval does not extend the lapse period of the
original approval.

Record of Minor Modifications and Annual Review: The Director shall keep a record of all
minor modifications that includes information about the date of the request, the location of the
project, a brief description of the minor modification request, and the Director's action. The
Director shall submit the minor modification log to the Planning Commission annually for review.
Upon reviewing the record, the Planning Commission may determine whether changes to the
Zoning & Development Ordinance of the City of Leavenworth, Kansas are necessary.

2.07 Appeals

Any person wishing to appeal a provision of this document as it has been applied to their case shall
make application for appeal to the appropriate entity as listed below.

A.

Zoning Regulations. Zoning regulations shall be appealed to the Board of Zoning Appeals as
specified in Article 11. Specifically this shall include:

Article 1. Section 1.05 Non-conformances

Article 2. Section 2.05 Site Development Plans

Article 4. District Regulations

Article 5. Parking

Article 8. Landscaping

Article 8. Signs

@ Jawas o b =

57. Article 10. Supplementary District Regulations

Development Regulations. Development regulations shall be appealed to the City Commission
where specified in these regulations. Specifically this shall include:

2 - 14

LEAVENWORTH, KANSAS
Revised 2022



DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS
ARTICLE 2. APPLICATIONS & PROCEDURES

2.06 Minor Modifications

ks Article 3. Subdivision Standards
42, Article 9. Historic Preservation

2 - 15

LEAVENWORTH, KANSAS
Revised 2022



DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS
ARTICLE 4. ZONING DISTRICTS & STANDARDS

4.04 Property Development Standards

4.03. Property Development Standards

A Dimension Table. Lot and building dimension standards for zoning districts shall be according to
Table 4-01.
Table 4-01: Zoning District Dimension Standards _
Lot Standards Minimum Setbacks R
- - = Building
Min. Size Min. Width Max. Front Interior Corner Rear Height
91 Coverage Side Side
R1-25 | 25,000s.f[1] 160’ 50% 25' 10 25' 25' 35
R1-9 9,000 s.f. 75 50% 26 5 25 25 35
R1-7.5 7,500 s.1. 75' 50% 25 ) 15' 10 35
R1-6 6,000 s.f. 48 50% 25 6 25 25 35
R-MF 48' (110 2 units) 6' (1-story)
6,000sf.[2) 72' (3 units) 50% 25! 10" (2-story) 25 25' 40
96' (4+ units) 15' (3-story)
R4-16 , i 6' (1-story)
600051, [3] ‘;z {{13 ‘33 3:::)) 50% 25 | 10 (2-story) 25 25 40
15" (3-story)
RMX See table 4-2
MP 10 acres 300 50% 25' 6 25' 25' 35
NBD 6' (1-story)
6,000 sf. 48 50% 25' 10" (2-story) 25' 25' 45
15" (3-story)
OBD 6' (1-story)
6,000 s.f. 48 80% [8] 25 10' (2-story) 25' 25' 45
15" (3-story)
CBD 2,000s.f. 48 100% 0'[4] 0' 4] 0'[4] 0" [4] none
GBD 6,000 s.f. 48 80% [8) 25' 0'(5] 25' 25 45
ROD See Section 4.05
. 15,000 s . 160 80% (8] 30 10' ] 20 [6) 2 S0ord
stories
-2 15,000 5.f. 160’ 80% [8) 30 10'[7) 20(7) 25' none
(1]  only with public water and sewer. See KDHE 4-2 and Leavenworth County Sanitary Code: minimum lot size is 2 acre without public
water or sewer.

[2] lots in the R-MF district shall have 3,000 square feet per dwelling unit.

[3] lots in the R-4-16 district shall have 4,000 square feet per dwelling unit.

[4] There are no yard requirements in the CBD except that a 25 setback shall be provided on any side of a lot which abuts a residential
district

[5] There are no interior side yard requirements in the GBD except that a 25' setback shall be provided on any side of a lot which abuts a
residential district

[6] Inthe |-1 district a 25' setback shall be provided abutting any dedicated street or residential district.

[7] Inthe |-2 district a 100'setback shall be provided abutting residential district, unless the use was located and platted prior to adoption of
these regulations in which case a 25' setback shall be provided. Setbacks abutting any dedicated street shall be 25",

[8] Maximum lot coverage requirements shall be subject to stormwater quality and quantity requirements as determined by the Public Works
Department for individual projects.

[91 Any adjacent right-of-way width may not be counted towards the minimum lot width requirement.

4 - 4
LEAVENWORTH, KANSAS
REvISED 2022



DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS

ARTICLE 4. ZONING DISTRICTS & STANDARDS

4.04 Use Standards

primary use on the parcel. In determining square footage of the primary use
(residential), attached garages and unfinished space shall not be counted.

No more than two detached accessory structures shall be allowed per building lot
or parcel whichever is larger in area. -On parcels two acres or larger, three
detached accessory structures shall be allowed. For these purposes, "detached
accessory structures” means any detached; garage, storage building, agriculture
building, gazebo, or other such similar above-ground structure erected in
conformance with these regulations.

Permitted Accessory Uses. Any structure or use that complies with the terms of these
Development Regulations may be allowed as an accessory use or structure (accessory
structures and uses include, but are not limited to, the following list of examples);
provided that in each case such structure must fit the general definition:

a.

= @

Private garages or carports: Not to exceed the following capacity:

(1) For single-family residences: a garage not to exceed 900 square feet on
parcels less than one acre, and 1,200 square feet on parcels one acre or
larger. Detached garages require construction of driveways to provide
access in conformance with the parking provisions of the code.

(2) For multi-family residence: two cars per dwelling unit. Not to exceed 600
square feet per unit.
(3) Requests for garages in excess of 900 square feet on parcels less than

one acre and in excess of 1,200 square feet on parcels one acre or
larger may be approved by the Board of Zoning Appeals.
Storage Buildings: A structure for storage incidental to a permitted use provided
no such structure that is accessory to a residential building shall exceed 250
square feet in gross floor area.
Play Structures: A child's playhouse, including tree houses.
Pools & Courts: An -private-above-ground swimming pool, bathhouse, or tennis
court_provided it shall be a minimum of ten feet from all property lines, five feet
from any primary building on the site, and complies with all applicable building
codes contained in the adopted building code.
Miscellaneous Yard Decor: Statuary, arbors, trellises, barbecue stoves,
flagpoles, fences, walls, and hedges—and-selarceollestors-
Shelters: Fallout and tornado shelters, provided that they shall not be used for
any principal or accessory use not permitted in the zoning district.
Signs: Signs, when permitted by Article 8 — Sign Regulations.
Parking: Off-street parking and loading spaces as required by these regulations.
Recreational Vehicles, Campers, Trailers, and Boats: Storage of major
recreational equipment, such as boats, boat trailers, camping trailers, converted
buses or trucks, house trailers, provided such storage area is in accordance with
all other requirements of these Development Regulations.
Commercial Accessories: Restaurants, drug stores, gift shops, swimming pools,
tennis courts, clubs and lounges and newsstands when located in a permitted
hotel, motel or office building.

4 - 8
LEAVENWORTH, KANSAS
REVISED 2022



DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS

ARTICLE 4. ZONING DISTRICTS & STANDARDS

4.04 Use Standards

Supplemental Employee Services: Employee restaurants and cafeterias when
located in a permitted business or manufacturing or industrial building.

Office Space: Offices for permitted business and industrial uses when the office
is located on the same site as the business or industry to which it is an
accessory.

Retail Sales: Retail sales in conjunction with permitted industrial uses when
located on the same site as the industrial use.

Indoor Retail Storage: The storage of retail merchandise when located within the
same building as the principal retail business.

Auto Sales: The retail sale of automobile parts and used automobiles on a tract
of land not to exceed one acre in area when located on the same site as and in
conjunction with an automobile race track.

Amateur Radio Towers: Amateur radio towers and antennae shall not exceed
the height of 50 feet in residential districts. A tower and antennae must maintain
a setback of one foot per one foot of height from all property lines and must be
located in a side or rear yard of the principal structure and the owner of the tower
and property maintains and shows proof of a current federal license as an
amateur radio operator. The construction of the tower must follow the
manufacturer's installation specifications.

Agriculture Buildings: In residential districts an agricultural accessory building not
to exceed two percent of the total square footage of the lot on which is it located
on parcels two acres or larger, up to a maximum of 3,400 square feet.

Apiaries: In residential districts, bee hives or boxes may not be kept within 50
feet of any dwelling (except the dwelling of the owner of such bees), or within 15
feet of any lot line, sidewalk, alley, or other right-of-way. Notwithstanding, bees
may be kept within 15 feet of a lot line, sidewalk, alley, or other right-of-way when
a barrier at least 6 feet high is placed between the bee hives or boxes and the lot
line, alley, or right-of-way which adequately impairs bee flight. No more than 3
hives shall be placed or kept in a location which is less than 200 feet from a
house or other building used for residential purposes other than the residence of
the keeper of such bees.

Solar Arrays, subject to the provisions included in Article 10, Supplemental

Standards.

Prohibited Accessory Uses. None of the following shall be permitted as an accessory

use:

a.

Outdoor storage or overnight parking in a residential district of commercial trucks
or trailers as defined herein, or other on, or off, road items exceeding 10,000
GVW (Gross Vehicle Weight).

Outdoor storage, of dismantled, inoperative and/or unlicensed motor vehicles;
parking and/or storage of construction machinery and equipment, tracked or
wheeled; farm machinery and/or equipment except as specifically permitted in
district regulations in conjunction with a permitted use.

4 - 9
LEAVENWORTH, KANSAS
REvIsSED 2022



DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS

ARTICLE 4. ZONING DISTRICTS & STANDARDS

4.04 Use Standards

5. Accessory Uses Permitted by Special Use Permit. The following accessory uses shall
only be permitted upon approval of a special use application by the City Commission:

a.

Commercial Communication Towers and Antennae. Including television and
radio towers, transmitting and receiving towers, dishes, and appurtenances,
subject to the provision included in Article 10, Supplemental Standards.
Rerawabls-Energy-Faciitesinsludingwind-orcelarenargy-facilitizsWind Ensray
Systems, subject to the provisions included in Article 10, Supplemental
Standards.

Child Care Centers for 7 or more children:

(1) Shall not be located along an arterial street as designated on the Major
Street Plan Map unless indirect vehicular access to that street, such as
with a frontage road is available. The City Planner, with the advice of the
DRC, shall determine if the drop off and pick up arraignments of a
childcare center or business appear safe. Appeal of any negative
decision shall be to the City Commission.

(2) Shall provide at least 100 square feet of open space per child. This open
space shall be 100% enclosed by a minimum 4’ high fence or wall.

(3) Shall provide a loading zone capable of accommodating at least 2
automobiles for the easy picking up and discharging of passengers.

(4) Shall conform to all requirements of the State of Kansas and shall
acquire a State of Kansas Child Care Center License.

(5) All childcare centers operated in residential zoning districts shall be the
only legal residence of the operator.

(B) Childcare centers in residential districts may have one non-illuminated

monument sign with no more than 3 square feet per side and a
maximum of 2 sides, or 1 non-illuminated sign affixed to the structure of
3 square feet. .
Accessory Dwelling Units. Accessory Dwelling Units (ADUs) may be approved
by Special Use Permit in any residential zoning district subject to the following
conditions:
(1) Shall be compatible with the design of the principal dwelling unit.
(2) Shall respect the general building scale and placement of structures to
allow sharing of common space on the lot, such as driveways and yards.
(3) Shall not have a separate driveway entrance from the street(s) to which
the property is adjacent.

4) Shall be 900 square feet or smaller in size, not to exceed 33% of the
floor area of the principal dwelling unit.

(5) Either the principal dwelling unit or the accessory dwelling unit must be
occupied by the owner of the premises.

(8) Shall meet all building code requirements for a single family dwelling
unit.

(7) Lots containing accessory dwelling units shall contain a minimum of two

off-street parking spaces, exclusive of garage space.
Massage Therapy establishments as a home occupation may be allowed with
issuance of a Special Use Permit. Such establishments are subject to all

4 - 10
LEAVENWORTH, KANSAS
ReEviseD 2022



DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS
ARTICLE 4. ZONING DISTRICTS & STANDARDS

4,04 Use Standards

requirements of Home Occupations as provided in these regulations, as well as
all requirements for Massage Establishments as provided in the City of
Leavenworth Code of Ordinances, Chapter 26, Article I1l.

Home Occupations. A home occupation may be established provided:

a. That no one, other than members of the immediate family residing on the
premises, be employed,;

b. That no use will occupy more than 25% of the gross floor area on one floor nor
more than 400 square feet of gross floor area;

C. That a carport, garage, or any accessory structure may only be used for home
occupations with issuance of a Special Use Permit;

d. That there shall be no use of material or mechanical equipment not recognized

as being part of normal household or hobby use;

e. Home occupations are allowed to display a-single-penr-illuminated sign-afficed-to
the-rrain-structure-no-largerthan-3-square-feet-on-a-vericalwall below the roof
seffitor-placed-in-the-front-yard:signage in accordance with section 8.08 of
these Development Regulations.

f That no offensive noise, vibration, smoke, dust, odors, heat, or glare shall be
produced;

s} That the home occupation shall be conducted entirely within the principal
residential building except with issuance of a Special Use Permit;

h. That no machinery or equipment shall be installed which interferes with radio or

television reception, and which is not customarily incidental to the practice of
such occupation or profession, but in no case shall any machine exceed one
rated horsepower,

I That only one type of profession or occupation shall be permitted within the
occupied dwelling or building;

J. That two off-street parking spaces are provided; and
k. That there is no keeping of stock in trade for on-site retail or wholesale trade or
sales.
l. Permitted home occupations shall not in any event be deemed to include:
(1) Automobile and vehicular repair on any other than the property owner's

personally owned and currently registered vehicle(s)

(2) Antique sales.

(3) Equipment rental business.

(4) Stables, kennels, veterinarian services, pet shops, and animal hospitals.
(5) Eating or drinking places.

(6) Mortuaries and embalming establishments.

(7) Private clubs, including fraternity and sorority houses.

(8) Retail sales (over the counter).

(9) Repair of home appliance and electronic equipment.

4 - 11
LEAVENWORTH, KANSAS
REvVISED 2022



DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS
ARTICLE 5. ACCESS & PARKING

5.02 Required Parking

C.

5.03. General

A shared parking plan shall be enforced through a written agreement among all
owners of record. An attested copy of the agreement between the owners of
record must be recorded at the Register of Deeds, prior to issuance of any
building permits.

A shared parking agreement may be revoked by the affected property owners
only if all required off-street parking spaces for both parties are provisioned
before the agreement is revoked.

Non-Contiguous Off-Street Parking.

1.

Separation Distance: Off-street parking facilities to fulfill a multiple-family, commercial,
industrial or special use permit requirement may be located within 200 feet of the
development (measured between property lines) if off-street parking requirements cannot
be met on the site.

Special Use Permit Required: Separate off-street parking facilities must meet the
following requirements and be approved as a Special Use:

a.

Screened or enclosed with a fence, wall, or other suitable enclosure having a
height of not less than three feet, and maintained in good condition.

Any lights used to illuminate the parking areas shall be so arranged as to direct
the light away from any adjoining residential premises.

Approval of the site plan, drawn to scale; showing proposed parking lot. The
developer will submit a site plan for off-street parking together with his application
for a building permit. This parking plan will be reviewed by the DRC for
adequacy prior to the issuance of a building permit.

A

Use. Required parking used only for parking operable motor vehicles using the site or use. Any
other use of parking areas for outside storage, display or commercial activity shall be permitted
by different provisions of these regulations

Surfaces and Markings. All off-street parking areas and driveways shall be surfaced and
provided with a minimum of:

1.

Residential Parking: (All dwelling units) Six inches of Portland Cement concrete, or four
inches of stone and four inches of asphaltic concrete._Alternative paving materials, such
as pavers. may be approved for single-family residences after review by the City

Engineer.

a.

A gravel parking pad in the rear yard may be installed with a border to contain
the gravel. Such gravel parking pad must be accessed directly off the alley and
may be a maximum depth of 37 feet as measured from the rear property line.

5 - 4
LEAVENWORTH, KANSAS
ReEvisep 2022



DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS
ARTICLE 6. LANDSCAPE & SITE DESIGN

6.07 Screening

b. Screening on three sides by a minimum six-foot masonry wall enclosed by an
evergreen living screen. Screening shrubs shall be a minimum of four feet in
height at installation and shall provide a minimum six-foot high screen when fully
grown. An opening shall be situated so that the container is not visible from
adjacent properties or public streets and the opening shall be a metal clad
opaque gate. Chain-link gates are not permitted. Gates must have tiebacks to
secure them in the open position.

6. Design of Screening. All screening shall be complementary to the building served in

landscaping approach and with similar colors and material palette.
6.08 Fences
A. Fence Types.

1. Open fences means those fences constructed of wood, masonry, metal, woven wire, or
other material whose surface area is greater than 50 percent open.

2. Solid fences means those fences constructed of wood, masonry, metal, planting, hedge
or other material whose surface area is or may become less than 50 percent open.

3. The smooth or most finished side shall be facing outward on all fences.

B. Permit Required.

1 It shall be unlawful for any person, property owner or fence construction company to
erect or install fencing without first paying the permit fee as set out in Appendix F,
Schedule of Fees and Charges, Code of Ordinances, City of Leavenworth, Kansas and
obtaining a fence or building permit pursuant to the provisions of these Development
Regulations.

2. Masonry fences, or fences which contain a portion of masonry, four feet or more in
height, or more than 4 feet above the nearby grade, shall be designed by an Engineer
licensed in the State of Kansas and shall require construction documents and a building
permit.

3. A survey by a surveyor licensed in the State of Kansas may be required by the Building
Official before issuing a permit.

G, Residential Uses Areas.

T

Prohibited Types.

(a) Barbed wire fence prohibited. No person shall construct, keep or maintain any
barbed wire fence, or fence any part of which is composed of barbed wire, within
a residential area of the city except when permitted as a farm use or as a
condition to a special use permit for those uses listed as a special use connected
with farming or agricultural activities in the R1-25 single-family residential district.

(b) Electric fence prohibited. No person shall construct, keep or maintain an
electrically charged fence within a residential area of the city except when
permitted as a farm use or as a condition to a special use permit for those uses
listed as a special use connected with farming or agricultural activities in the R1-
25 single-family residential district of the Development Regulations of the City of

6 - 9

LEAVENWORTH, KANSAS



DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS

ARTICLE 6. LANDSCAPE & SITE DESIGN

6.08 Fences

Leavenworth, Kansas. These installations will then only be permitted when the
electric fence is installed behind an open fence separated by three feet.

Residential Front Yard.

(@)
(b)

Open fences and hedges may be installed in all front yards on the property lines
but may not exceed 48 inches above the natural contour of the ground.

No solid fences shall be constructed or reconstructed closer to the street line
than the front wall of the residential structure. The front wall of the residential
structure shall be determined by excluding porches, roof overhangs, dormers, or
other extensions.

Where a residential property abuts a commercial or industrial property or use and
where screening has not been installed or is not required, the residential property
owner may install a solid or open screening fence on the property line not to
exceed 72 inches in height above the natural contour of the ground along the
property line that abuts the commercial or industrial property or use.

Residential Side or Rear Yards.

(a)

(b)

Open fences and hedges may be installed in all side and rear yards on the
property line but may not exceed 72 inches above the natural contour of the
ground.

Solid fences may be installed on the rear property line and on the side property

line to a point aligning with the front wall of the residential structure as defined in

subsection 2. of this section not exceeding 72 inches in height above the natural
contour of the ground; provided that no solid fence greater than 48 inches above
the natural contour of the ground shall be built within six feet of a residential
structure on adjoining property; provided further, that if any portion of the
adjoining structure is closer than six feet, then such solid fence shall not exceed
four feet in height for the entire length of the side or rear yard property line.

(1) On corner lots, both yards adjacent to streets are considered front yards.
In this instance, the fence on the addressed side must be erected in
accordance with subsection 2.; on the other side a solid fence not
exceeding 72 inches in height above the natural contour of the ground
may be built on the property line, provided that the property line is a
minimum of 15 feet from the curb or edge of pavement. If the property
line is less than 15 feet from the edge of the pavement, the fence shall
be installed a minimum of 15 feet from the curb or edge of pavement, or
50 percent of the existing setback from the house to the property line,
whichever is less.

(2) For the purpose of determining yard requirements on corner lots, the
street the property is addressed from shall be considered the frontage
and yards shall be provided, as set forth in this section.

Where a residential property-use abuts a commercial or industrial property or

use, and where screening has not been installed or is not required, the

residential property owner may install a solid-type screening fence on the

property line ro-less-than-sixfeet-nemore-thanup to eight feet above the
contour of the natural ground along the property line that abuts the commercial or
industrial property or use.

6 - 10

LEAVENWORTH, KANSAS



DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS
ARTICLE 6. LanNDScaAPE & SITE DESIGN

6.08 Fences

(d) A solid fence may be installed around a private swimming pool or patio not to
exceed 96 inches above the natural contour of the ground, provided it complies
with all applicable building codes contained in the adopted building code.

and-netmo 3 = io-provided-allother
reguirements-of-this-section-are-met-

Commercial and industrial areasuses—Types permitted.
1. Decorative Fences. Decorative fences shall be permitted in the Central Business District
upon approval by the Development Review Committee. Peserativefences-shall-be

2. Fences in commercial zoned areas of the city shall be either of open or solid type
construction.

3. Height restrictions.
(a) Fences for commercial uses may be up to eight feet above the natural contour of

the ground. Fences may be installed on the property line, except that no fence
adjacent to the right-of-way may exceed 6 feet in height and no fence may be
installed in the vision clearance triangle.

(b) Fences for industrial uses shall be no less than six feet or more than eight feet
above the natural contour of the ground and may be installed on the property line
except in the vision clearance triangle.

4. Use of barbed wire.

(a) Fencing of the chain-link type for commercial and industrial preperties-er-uses
may be topped with barbed wire on slanted arms. When these slanted arms are
used, they shall be slanted outward and upward at an angle of not less than 45
degrees. No barbed wire will be permitted on nonconforming business properties
in residential zoning districts.

(b) When the commercial or industrial property or use abuts a residential preperty-er
use, a chain-link fence with the barbed wire topping may be installed along the
abutting residential property line provided the lowest point of the barbed wire is at
least six feet above the ground.

(c) Chain-link fencing with barbed wire topping shall not be installed any closer than
five feet to any street, sidewalk, or pedestrian way.

Agricultural Fence. The term "agricultural fence" shall apply only to areas conforming to the
requirements of the R1-25 District and those activities permitted as a farm use, or as a condition
to a special use permit for those uses listed as a special use connected with farming or activities
in the R1-25 single-family residential district, Development Regulations of the City of
Leavenworth, Kansas.

1. Permitted types.  Agricultural fences shall be of the open type construction only.

B ' d

LEAVENWORTH, KANSAS



DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS
ARTICLE 6. LANDSCAPE & SITE DESIGN

6.08 Fences
21 Height restriction. Agricultural fences shall not exceed four feet in height above the
natural contour of the ground.
3. Use of barbed wire by special permit; prohibited when abutting residential propertyuses.

The use of barbed wire in the construction, reconstruction or maintenance of agricultural
fences shall be by a special permit issued by the city inspector. The permit shall not be
given or renewed if the fence forms a boundary with a residential development.

4. Hedges and evergreens along public ways—Height restricted. The owner of any hedge
or evergreen fence along the side of any street, avenue, or alley shall not permit any
such hedge or evergreen fence to grow to exceed four feet in height.

General restrictions — all fences.

1. Sight Distance. No fence shall be constructed nor shall a hedge or evergreen fence be
planted or allowed to grow in such a manner as to obstruct the vision triangle at
intersections.

2. Exposure of solid fences. When tight-board fences are constructed, the smooth finished

surface shall face the exterior of the property.

Notice to trim. The owner of any hedge or evergreen fence along the side of any street, avenue,
or alley shall on 30 days' notice in writing given by the city inspector be required to trim such
hedge or evergreen fence to conform to the requirements of the City’s property maintenance
notice.

Fence maintenance notice. Any property owner who fails to maintain any fence or screening
structure in a clean, sanitary and inoffensive condition and free and clear of all obnoxious
substances, rubbish and weeds shall, after 30 days' written notice from the Director or his agent,
be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor and subject to the penalty provisions of these Development
Regulations and any other applicable City Ordinance.

6.09 Tree Preservation

The purpose of this subsection is to protect the existing tree canopy as well as protect future tree
canopies of the city when development or redevelopment occurs. The standards in this subsection are
intended to regulate the removal of trees on lots within the city. It is not the intent of this subsection to
unduly restrict desirable development and redevelopment that would otherwise be possible without these
standards. The standards in this subsection shall be applied during review of any development or
building permit application.

A.

Preservation of Significant Trees. Significant trees shall be preserved to the maximum extent
feasible. For the purposes of this standard, the caliper of a “significant” tree shall be at least 24
inches for a deciduous tree and 18 inches for an evergreen.

Significant Tree Replacement. \Where significant trees cannot feasibly be preserved, the total
caliper inches of the tree(s) that are removed shall be replaced on-site by the same caliper inches
of new trees. For example, if a 24-inch caliper sugar maple is removed from the site; new trees
with total caliper inches of 24 must be replanted. The new trees shall either be of the same or

6 - 12

LEAVENWORTH, KANSAS



DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS
ARTICLE 7. DESIGN STANDARDS

7.02 Residential Design

(3) Designing the multi-family building so that the massing, arrangement of
architectural elements, and use of exterior materials gives the
appearance of a large single-family home.

i. Rooflines longer than 50 feet shall include at least one vertical elevation change
of at least two feet.

j- The incorporation of a variety of roof forms is strongly encouraged. Upper-level

residential floors may be incorporated into the roof form to reduce the apparent
height and mass of buildings.

Orientation and Articulation. The following orientation and articulation standards require that
buildings relate to neighborhood streetscapes and share a pedestrian-oriented details that help
reduce the scale of buildings and create a range of compatible but distinct designs and patterns,
even when different building mass or forms exist, and particularly when different architectural
styles are blended.

1:

Entrances. To the maximum extent feasible, the primary entrance and fagade of
individual buildings shall not be oriented towards parking, but shall be oriented towards:
a. An abutting public street, or

b. Common open space, such as interior courtyards, parks, or on-site natural areas
or features with a clearly defined and easily accessible pedestrian circulation
system.

c. All ground-floor units with frontage along the primary street shall have an

entrance that faces the street. Multi-family buildings located with multiple street
frontages shall provide entrances to units along each street frontage.

d. Exterior entrances from a public sidewalk or common open space are permitted
for dwelling units on the ground floor. These entrances shall be raised from the
finished ground-floor level of the sidewalk a minimum of two-feet18-inches3 feet
6 inches.

e. Dwelling units above the ground floor shall have interior unit entrances, except
that exterior stairs are permitted for access to upper-floor units only if they are
oriented towards a central plaza not visible from any street.

Transparency. Atleast 25% of all wall surface area facing a public street shall be windows.

Vertical Articulation. Buildings three stories or more shall use the following design details
to reduce the scale of the fagade:

a. The top floor of any building shall contain a distinctive finish, consisting of a
cornice, banding, or other architectural termination.
b. An expression line shall delineate divisions between floors of all buildings, and a

cornice shall delineate the tops of facades for buildings that do not utilize a
pitched roof.

o Buildings shall be designed to incorporate visually heavier and more massive
elements at the building base, and lighter elements above the base. Upper
stories shall not appear heavier or demonstrate greater mass than the lower
stories of the building.

Materials. The following materials are acceptable for construction:

1.

2.

3.

Brick, concrete stucco, stone, stone facing, textured masonry block, wood, glass in
combination with metal, or similar, durable architectural materials.

This list may be amended by the addition of other acceptable materials without amending
these regulations.

All added acceptable materials shall be approved by the DRC. The Chief Building Official
shall maintain the list of additional acceptable materials.

EIFS, or synthetic stucco may be approved on a case-by-case basis.

7 -3

LEAVENWORTH, KANSAS



DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS
ARTICLE 7. DESIGN STANDARDS

7.02 Residential Design

F. Garages, Parking and Access. The following garage, parking and access standards balance
the design of sites and buildings for cars, with impacts on neighborhood streetscapes and
pedestrian scale residential design.

1. Front-loaded garage doors shall not comprise more than 45% of the building line on the
front fagade.
2. Alternative garage locations such as side- or rear-entry, detached garages, or garages
setback at least 12-feet from the front building line are encouraged.
a. Any detached garage shall be architecturally compatible, and consistent in
materials, design and colors as the main building.
b. Any side loaded garage shall have designs on the street-facing wall that are

compatible with the house design materials identical to the primary fagade, and
by incorporating at least two of the following elements:

(1) Two or more windows, with a size, orientation and design similar to those
on the primary fagade;
(2) A permanent trellis covering a minimum of 25% of the wall area. One

vine for every eight liner feet of trellis shall be planted at its base.
Appropriate vine species are approved by the Director; or
(3) Garage or living area fagade offset from the other a minimum of 4 feet.

3 Driveway widths within the front yard shall be limited to no more than 30% of the lot
frontage width, as measured at the front building line or 30 feet from the front property
line, whichever is less. Where this limits access to a lot, alternatives such as single-
drives to expanded driveway pads, shared driveways and lanes, or alley-loaded access
should be considered.

4, To the maximum extent feasible, garage entries, carports, parking areas and parking
structures shall be internalized in building groupings or internalized into a residential
block and oriented away from the streetscape.

5. Overall, parking areas and freestanding parking structures (detached garages or car
ports) shall not occupy more than 30 percent of the perimeter public street frontage for
multi-family development.

G. Variation of Design. In order to avoid the monotony of repetitive building design, to encourage
diversity and visual interest, and to promote a wide range of distinct details within a narrow range
of compatible building types, scale and forms, the following techniques should be used in
residential projects affecting multiple adjacent buildings:

1 Variation of building types, models or floor plans that result in distinct but compatible
building forms when viewed from the streetscape.

2. Variation of front entry features, and to design of roof structures associated with front-
entry features;

3. Distinct architectural styles that impact the materials, placement of windows, or level of

details and ornamentation while still presenting a compatible design and relationship to
the neighborhood streetscape.

7.03 Non-Residential Design

A Design Objective. The non-residential design standards are intended to protect and preserve
the quality and character of the built environment in the city's mixed use, commercial, and
industrial districts. More specifically, the purposes of this section are to:

1. Reflect on the impact of various design and development decisions, and how the various
styles of within our community can be applied to include a greater degree of interest and
diversity, but also a greater degree of compatibility and effective transitions.

2. Promote a specific an intentional relationship of buildings and sites to streetscapes and
public or civic spaces through design.

T =

LEAVENWORTH, KANSAS



DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS
ARTICLE 8. SIGNS

8.01 Purpose

ARTICLE 8. SIGNS

8.01.

Purpose and Intent

A

The purpose of this Sign Code is to create the framework for a comprehensive and balanced

system of content- and viewpoint-neutral regulation of signs to facilitate easy and pleasant
communication between people while protecting the First Amendment rights of resident individuals and
businesses of the city and preserving and improving the quality of the city's environment by avoiding
visual clutter harmful to traffic and pedestrian safety, property values, business opportunities, and
community appearance.

B.

8.02.

This chapter is intended to:

Promote public safety, order and cleanliness;

Prevent needless visual cluttering within the city;

Promote aesthetics and the quality of community life;

Reduce distraction of motor vehicle operation by signage;

Provide a means to display signs compatible with their surroundings, and legible to the
driving public; and

Impose the least regulation and restriction on the expression of opinions and the
conveying of information while accomplishing the above purposes.

OV P 00 I =t

@

Scope

8.03.

No sign in the City of Leavenworth shall be permitted in any district except in accordance with the
provisions of this sign code.

This sign code does not apply to signs erected in the public right-of-way, which are regulated by
other processes and does not apply to signs erected wholly within a building and not visible
outside of the building.

All sign permits requested under this Article, if they lie within a historic district, are subject to prior
review and approval procedures found in Article 9, Historic Preservation Regulations.

Computations

The following principles shall control the computation of sign surface, sign face and sign height:

A.

Computation of Sign Face of Individual Signs: The entire area within a single continuous
perimeterrectangle enclosing all elements (individual letters and/or logo) of the sign which
form an integral part of the display including the perimeter border.

Computatron of Area of Multi- Face Signs: lhe—s*gn»su#aee—fepa—ag-w&mﬁepe-thaﬂ—eﬂe

.Only
one side of a mulh-faced sign sha!l be con5|dered when determlnmq the sign area. Drovnded

that the faces are equal in size and the interior angle formed by the faces is less than 45
degrees. When these conditions are not met, all faces of the sian shall be considered in
calculating the sign area.

g8 - 1

LEAVENWORTH, KANSAS
UPDATED 2022



DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS
ARTICLE 8. SIGNS

8.04 Permits

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

Contractor signs: One free-standingfreestanding, non-illuminated contractor's sign,
not to exceed eight square feet of sign surface, shall be permitted for each
contractor if the property is zoned Residential, or not to exceed 32 square feet if the
property is zoned other than Residential. The sign shall not be installed before
commencing work on the project or the issuance of a building permit for the project
and the sign shall be removed upon completion of the project.

Public interest signs that do not exceed the size limitations.

Address signs.

Commercial Real Estate signs not exceeding 32 square feet in area per sign face with
two faces permitted. Signs shall not exceed 8 feet in height. Signs are limited to one
sign per street frontage, with a maximum of two signs for each project. Signs must be
located at least 10 feet from the edge of the curb or behind any existing public sidewalks
and may not be illuminated or have an electronic changeable face.

Residential Real Estate signs not exceeding 3 square feet in area. Signs are limited to 1
on-premises sign per street frontage, and two off-premises signs permitted only with
permission of property owner. Signs must be located at least 10 feet from the edge of
the curb or behind any existing public sidewalks and may not be illuminated or have an
electronic changeable face.

Garage Sale signs may only be placed at the site of the sale. All garage sale signs
shall be removed immediately upon completion of the sale. Garage sale signs
include sample and yard sale signs. Garage sale signs shall not exceed four square
feet per sign, with two faces per sign permitted. A garage sale permit shall be
obtained as required by Section 12-541 of the City Code of Ordinances.

Signs carried by a person.
Costumed people promoting a business or event.

Flags, pennants, emblems, memorial tablets, cornerstone etches, monuments and
insignia of any governmental body, public or private school, church, synagogue or other
place used primarily for worship, community centers, or other public, semi-public, or civic
organizations or other similar noncommercial entity, when not displayed in connection
with a commercial promotion or as an advertising device; provided that not more than
three flags, pennants or insignia shall be displayed on any building, structure or
premises, unless specifically herein provided. Any other provisions as applicable
regarding display of the American flag as contained in Title 4, U.S. Code.

Integral decorative or architectural features of buildings, so long as these features do not
contain letters, trademarks, moving parts or lights.

Decorative landscape markers, which may include logos or trademarks.

Signs attached to a currently licensed, operational and legally parked or legally moving
vehicle.

8 - 3

LEAVENWORTH, KANSAS
UPDATED 2022



DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS
ARTICLE B8. SIGNS

8.06 General Standards

8.07.

the sign is one for which no sign permit is required, the message substitution may be made
without additional approval. The purpose of this provision is to prevent inadvertent favoring of
commercial speech over noncommercial speech, or favoring of any particular non-commercial
message over any other non-commercial message. This provision does not allow for the

substitution of an off-premise commercial message in place of an on-premises commercial
message.

Materials. All attached signs and fres-standingfreestanding signs shall be constructed of
materials generally used for permanent signage. A vinyl, fabric, or other similar material banner
may not be utilized for a permanent attached or free-standingfreestanding sign.

Signs Permitted in All Districts

The following signs shall be permitted in all zoning districts; permits shall be required unless
excluded from the permit requirements.

A.

Official governmental jurisdiction flags, including flags indicating weather conditions, and
flags that are emblems of religious, charitable, public, and nonprofit organizations. No flag
shall exceed 50 square feet in area. Title 4 of the United States Code provides instructions
on how to display the Flag of the United States.

One freestanding directional sign shall be permitted at each entrance to a building site and
at each entrance to a drive-thru facility when zoned business-commercial, office or
industrial. _Such signs shall not be located on the right-of- way and shall not block vision to
traffic Such signs shall not exceed four feet in height, shall not exceed four square feet of
area per sign face, and may be single or double-faced. One directional wall sign shall be
permitted for each exterior wall of a business. Such sians shall not exceed 6 square feet in
area. Such signs may indicate entrances, exits, addresses, direction of traffic flow, and the
location of loading docks, parking areas, delivery doors, drive-thru lanes, and similar
facilities. Up to 25% of the area of the sign may be used to display the name or logo of the
developer, building or principal tenant. Such-signs-shall-net-be-located-on-theright-of-way
and-shall-net-bleck-vision-to-traffic. These signs are not computed as part of allowable free

standing-signage and will not be subject to spacing restrictions. Directional signs shall not
be electronic changeable message signs.

Contractors' remodeling signs identifying the contractor(s) who perform remodeling or
property improvement work are permitted. Not more than one sign, not to exceed eight
square feet, shall be permitted for each contractor if the property is zoned residential, or not
to exceed 32 square feet if the property is zoned other than residential. Said signs shall not
be installed before commencing work on the project or the issuance of a building permit for
the project and the sign shall be removed within 80 days of completion of the project.

Contractor's remodeling signs may be a non-affixed sign, but shall not be an illuminated sign
or an electronic changeable message sign.

Address signs that do not exceed two square feet in areas zoned residential and three
square feet in areas not zoned residential and may include the name of a legal home

occupation. Address signs shall not be an illuminated signs or electronic changeable
message sign.

8 - 6

LEAVENWORTH, KANSAS
UPDATED 2022



DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS
ARTICLE 8. SIGNS

8.07 Signs Permitted in All Districts

8.08. Signs Permitted in Residential Districts (R1-25, R1-9, R1-6, R1-7.5, R4-16, R-
MF)

Tablé‘é-ﬂif:Rééfdéﬁﬁal Si'gnaﬁe'Sta:ndards £
Maximum

Number Height Area
Home Based Business Signs 1 N/A 6 s.f.
Temporary Signs 3 N/A 3s.f.
Real Estate Signs 1 B6' 6 s.f.
For Sale Signs (undeveloped land over 5 acres) 2 10' 40 sf.
Open House Signs 1 6' 6 s.f.
Neighborhood/Development Identification Signs 1 per entrance 8 50 s.f.
Public & Semi-Public Buildings See Table 8-02

The following types of signs are permitted in residential districts, in accordance with the requirements set
forth or referred to herein:

A All signs as regulated and permitted in Section 8.07 - Signs Permitted in All Districts.
B. A 6 square foot home based business sign.
C. Temporary signs, not specifically otherwise identified by sign type, conforming to the restrictions

set forth herein are allowed as follows;
4|3 Three temporary signs are permitted on any lot.

2. These temporary signs may be double faced, and have a sign face no larger than 3
square feet

D. In lieu of the temporary signs permitted herein a real estate sign not exceeding six square feet
per sign face, with two faces per sign are permitted. The maximum height of the sign shall not
exceed six feet. A maximum of one sign per street frontage shall be permitted.

E. Undeveloped land over five acres in size shall be allowed two "For Sale" signs not to exceed 40
square feet in area per sign face, with two sign faces permitted. No sign shall exceed 10 feet in
height.

E: In lieu of the temporary signs permitted a sign designating an open house may be erected at the

site of an open house. No open house sign shall exceed six square feet per sign face with two
faces per sign permitted. One sign face shall be allowed in lieu of each one of the temporary
signs permitted by subsection (B) above. The maximum height of the sign shall not exceed six

8 - 7

LEAVENWORTH, KANSAS
UPDATED 2022



DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS
ARTICLE 8. SIGNS

8.08 Residential Districts

8.09.

feet. Open house signs shall be removed immediately upon completion of the open house. Such
signs shall comply with the real estate sign restrictions except as specifically restricted herein.

Permanent property identification signs may be permitted at each entrance to a neighborhood,
subdivision, or residential development in accordance with subdivision plat approval.

Public and Semi-Public Buildings. Churches, schools, libraries, community centers, hospitals,
or other public/semi-public facilities located in a residentially zoned district shall be allowed

signage as regulated and permitted in Section 8.10, Signs Permitted in the Neighborhood
Business District (NBD).

Signs Permitted in the MP (Mobile Home Park)

The following signs shall be permitted in the MP Zoning District as set forth herein:

A.
B.

All signs as regulated and permitted in Section 8.07 - Signs Permitted in All Districts.

For rental and/or management offices, one identification sign not exceeding 12 square feet
in sign surface, attached flat against the wall is allowed.

Other signs as reviewed and approved as part of a rezoning request may be allowed.

8.10. Signs Permitted in the Neighborhood Business Districts (NBD) and
Residential Mixed Use District (RMX)

Table 8-02: NBD. éigh'ag' e Standards

Maximum Maximum Maximum
Number Size Height

96 s.f. or 10%
of wall surface

Attached Signs 1 per side [1] N/A
| Free-StandingFreestanding Signs 1 32sf. 15
Sandwich Board (A-frame) Signs 1 6 s.f. N/A

Window Signs N/A of window area N/A

32 s.f. or 33%

[1] Projecting signs are allowed as regulated by Section 8.10.B.2

The following signs shall be permitted in the Neighborhood Business District and Residential Mixed
Use District:

A
B.

All signs as regulated and permitted in Section 8.07 - Signs Permitted in All Districts.

Signs attached to a building shall be allowed as follows:

i One wall sign shall be allowed for each side of the structure. A structure with

multiple businesses may have one sign for each separate business. Each separate
business shall have clearly defined exterior wall space and the size of that wall

8 - 8

LEAVENWORTH, KANSAS
UPDATED 2022



DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS
ARTICLE 8. SIGNS

8.10 Neighborhood Business District

space shall be the determining factor on sign size allowance. The sign Surface shall
not exceed 96 square feet or 10% of the wall surface, whichever is less. This wall

sign may be an electronic changeable message sign, provided it complies with the
applicable standards for same.

2. A projecting sign that does not project from a building greater than a distance of six
feet, does not encroach in the public right-of-way, and maintains eight feet of
clearance from grade is permitted. In computing the square foot allowance for a
projecting sign, the total area of the sign surface shall be included in the total area
allowed for all wall signs, but shall not be larger than 24 square feet. Projecting
signs do not reduce the number of wall signs as regulated by the zoning district,
however, only one projecting sign shall be allowed per business.

One free-standingfreestanding sign shall be allowed per parcel, regulated as follows:

1. Free-standingFreestanding signs shall not exceed 15 feet in height.

2. No part of a free-standingfreestanding sign face, frame, or base shall be closer than
five feet to the public right-of-way or side or rear property line and shall not obstruct
traffic vision.

3. Free-standingFreestanding signs may have two faces and shall not exceed 32
square feet per face, or one square foot of sign per lineal foot of lot frontage,
whichever is less.

4. No free-standingfreestanding sign face, frame or base shall be closer than 50 feet to
another free-standingfreestanding sign.

5. Separate and distinct street frontages shall be computed individually for allowable
signage; however, signs shall be located on the street frontage that is used for
computation. (No accumulation is allowed for unused street frontages.)

6. The allowed free-standingfreestanding signs may be electronic changeable message
signs, provided they comply with all other standards in this article addressing
lighting, safety, and electronic changeable messages.

One sandwich board (A-frame) sign that meets the following requirements per street
frontage is allowed as follows:

1. A permit shall be required for sandwich board signs. Permits are good for the life of
the sign.

2: Sandwich boards signs shall be on-premises signs.

3. The sign may be located on the public sidewalk or the planting strip adjacent to the

edge of the street on which it fronts. Signs shall not be placed in any raised
streetscape or publicly owned planters.

4. The sign may not exceed six square feet in area per side and may have no more
than two sides for the display of messages.
5. The spread of the "A” at the open end shall be sufficient to insure stability and no
wider.
6. Signs shall be adequately weighted to resist wind gusts.
8 - 9

LEAVENWORTH, KANSAS
UPDATED 2022



DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS
ARTICLE 8., SIGNS

8.11 Commercial & Industrial

150s.f. | 150 s.f. | 150 s.f.
or33% | or33% | or 33%

of of of
window | window | window
Window Signs N/A N/A N/A area area area N/A N/A N/A

[1] Maximum 10% of wall surface to which signs are attached
[2] Projecting signs are allowed as regulated by section 8.11.C.5
[3] When located across street from commercial or industrial use, height may be increased per section 8.11.D.1

[4] Size may not exceed 1 s.f. per lineal foot of frontage in OBD or CBD, and 2 s.f. per lineal foot of frontage in GBD,
-1 &1-2

All signs as regulated and permitted in Section 8.07 - Signs Permitted in All Districts.
Signs as regulated and permitted in the NBD.
Signs attached to a building shall be allowed as follows:

1. One sign shall be allowed for each side of a structure or part of a structure clearly defined
as an individual storefront. An individual storefront shall have an exterior wall clearly
related to the interior space of that storefront and may or may not have windows or an
entrance door to the inside of the building.

2. The sign surface area shall not exceed ninety-six (96) square feet in Office Business
District (OBD), 150 square feet in Central Business District (CBD) and 500 square feet in
General Business District (GBD) and Light and Heavy Industrial Districts (I-1 & 1-2) or
10% of the wall surface to which the sign(s) are attached, whichever is less.

3. The permitted signs may be wall signs, projecting signs, mansard signs, roof signs, or
marquee signs. A roof sign shall not exceed the highest point of the roof of the structure.
A marquee sign may be an electronic changeable message sign.

4, The signage permitted herein may be an electronic changeable message sign, provided it
complies with all applicable standards.

B. Projecting signs shall not project from the wall greater than a distance of six feet or
encroach in a public right-of-way in OBD, GBD, I-1 or I-2 and shall maintain eight feet of
clearance from grade. Projecting signs in the CBD may encroach in the right-of-way, but
shall be constructed of approved nonflammable, safety material, shall maintain eight feet
of clearance to grade, and shall not be closer than five feet to a curb line.

sha”—b&me&&ded—m%he%ta%&swfae&a;eaaﬂewed—bu#shauProlectmq signs shall not
exceed 24 square feet, unless ar-exseption-is-granted-by-the City Commissiena variance
is approved by the Board of Zoning Appeals, provided that no projecting sign shall
exceed 48 square feet under any conditions. Projecting signs shall not reduce the
number of signs allowed per wall as otherwise allowed by this code.

g = 12

LEAVENWORTH, KANSAS
UpPDATED 2022



DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS
ARTICLE 8. SIGNS

8.11 Commercial & Industrial

8.12.

7

For any business or tenant that does not adjoin an exterior wall of the building in which

they are located. or does not adjoin an exterior wall that directly fronts a public street, one
wall sian shall be allowed on another exterior wall of the same building.

One free-standingfreestanding sign shall be permitted per parcel and regulated as follows:

1.

Free-standingFreestanding signs shall not exceed 15 feet in height. Where a sign is
located across the street from a property zoned for commercial or industrial uses,
the height of the sign may be increased to a height of 25 feet, provided that the
nearest edge of the sign is setback from the property line 2 feet for each additional 1
foot in height.

No part of a free-stardingfreestanding sign face or sign structure shall be closer than five
feet to any property line and shall not obstruct traffic vision.

Free-standingFreestanding signs may have two faces and shall not exceed 50 square
feet per face or one square foot of sign per lineal foot of lot frontage, whichever is less, in
OBD or CBD, and 100 square feet per face or two square feet of sign per lineal foot of lot
frontage, whichever is less, in GBD, I-1 or |-2.

No free-standingfreestanding sign face, frame or base shall be closer than 50 feet to
another free-standingfreestanding sign.

Separate and distinct street frontages shall be computed individually for allowable
signage; however, signs shall be located on that street frontage which is used for
computation (No accumulation is allowed for unused street frontage.)

The free-standingfreestanding signs may be electronic changeable message signs,
provided they comply with all applicable standards.

Window signs, as otherwise restricted and permitted herein shall be allowed provided that:

1.

The total window sign area in a tenant space shall not exceed 33% of the window area,
for each front, side or rear wall, provided that, the total sign surface shall not exceed 150
square feet per side of the building. For the purposes of this subsection, the term
"window area" includes the non-opague parts of any doors or other fenestrations.

The allowable window sign area as defined herein may be illuminated and may be an
electronic changeable message sign.

Temporary Signs

The following restrictions, in additional to any other restriction set forth in this sign code,
shall apply to any permitted temporary sign.

1.

All temporary signs shall obtain a permit before placement except as otherwise
specifically stated in this sign code.

Application for a permit after placement shall cause the permit fee to triple.

8 - 13

LEAVENWORTH, KANSAS
UPDATED 2022



DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS
ARTICLE 8. SIGNS

8.15 Nonconforming, Hazardous, Dangerous, lllegal, and Prohibited Signs

8 Emergency Abatement by City: When, in the opinion of the City Engineer, there is
actual or immediate danger to the public caused by a hazardous or dangerous sign,
the City shall cause the same to be abated with no written notice or hearing. Costs
for such emergency abatement shall be assessed to the property owner.

C. Vacated and Abandoned Signs: Within 6 months following discontinuance of the business
or usage to which the sign relates, the sign face and structure shall be removed in entirety.

D. Reuse: Reuse of a vacated, nonconforming sign, or any of its appurtenances shall require
altering the sign to comply with this sign code. A new business use intending to reuse a
conforming sign base or pole properly capped and vacated shall obtain a sign permit in
accordance with this sign code.

E. Signs for Nonconforming Uses: Nonconforming uses which are otherwise permitted by these
regulations may obtain permits for signage in conformance with the least intensive zoning district
in which the use is permitted by right.

8.16. AppealsVariances

A request for a variance to any provision of this Article must be made through application to the

Board of Zoning Appeals. as further defined in Article 11.

8 - 19

LEAVENWORTH, KANSAS
UPDATED 2022



DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS
ARTICLE 9. HISTORIC PRESERVATION

9.06 Enforcement

C. Sufficient Documentation Required: No building permit shall be issued until the property
owner has submitted accurate building elevations, site plan and construction drawings and
material lists in sufficient detail to enable the City to conclude that the project meets the
appropriateness test as set by the Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for Rehabilitation
and the special terms of this Code.

D. Compliance with Plans Presented Required: Building construction shall be halted if
inspection staff notes that the project description presented to the City for approval differs in
any way from the construction practices being performed on-site. During this stop-
construction period, the City shall require compliance with the original approved depiction.
The owner may appeal the order to the Leavenworth Preservation Commission by
submitting amendments to the original plan and construction may proceed upon their
approval. If the Leavenworth Preservation Commission denies the amendment, the owner
may appeal to the City Commission.

E. Orders to Cease Construction: The Staff, upon discovery that a demolition or
improvement to a property is being made without review of the appropriate permit, shall
issue notice to cease to the owner and shall take all appropriate measures to prevent such
unlawful act. Notice shall explain the nature of the violation in clear terms and shall allow
the owner to give satisfactory evidence that the action will be corrected within 30 days or an
appropriate action to comply with the provisions of this Code will be initiated. Failure to
comply may result in citation to municipal court and may result in the City taking corrective
action to abate the offense and assess the costs of such abatement to the owner.

E. Assessment of Compliance Costs: If the City has filed proper notice and the time has
elapsed for correction by the owner, the City may take corrective action and any and all
costs incurred by the City under the provisions of this article shall be assessed against each
lot or piece of ground, chargeable therewith as a special assessment, and the City Clerk
shall certify the assessment to the County Clerk for collection as other special assessments
are collected.

9.07. Appeals

Any property owner aggrieved by any section of this Article may apply for an appeal. Appeals shall
be to the Leavenworth Preservation Commission. Any decision of the commission may be further
appealed to the City Commission. All rulings by the City Commission shall be final and binding on
all parties unless appealed to a court of valid jurisdiction.

LEAVENWORTH, KANSAS



DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS
ARTICLE 9. HISTORIC PRESERVATION

9.08 Variances

9.088. Historic Resources Survey

The commission shall annually update the historical resources survey to identify buildings, structures,
sites, neighborhoods and areas that may have historical, cultural, or architectural importance to the
community. As part of the survey, the commission shall evaluate studies by other organizations and
compile appropriate descriptions, facts, and photographs. All such materials shall be documented in
accordance with the survey manual prepared by the SHPO.

9.940. Identification of Landmarks and Historic Districts

The commission shall identify the most significant resources with potential for designation as a local
Landmark or historic district, devise and adopt procedures to initiate and consider their nomination to
local, state and national registers and prepare and adopt a heritage conservation and promotion plan
containing goals, objectives and policies to preserve the community's historic resource.

9.104. Leavenworth Landmarks Register

The commission shall establish a register of local historic places to be called the Leavenworth Landmarks
Register. The register will contain a complete description of all buildings, structures, sites, and objects
designated as landmarks and a description of boundaries of any area designated a historic district. All
landmarks and districts shall be identified on the Landmarks Register Map, on file in the office of the City
Clerk and the Community Development Department. Updated copies of the map will be provided to the
reference section of the Leavenworth Public Library.

9.112. Nomination of Landmarks and Historic Districts

Using the required public hearing process nominations for landmark or historic district designation
shall be made by application submitted by the owner of a landmark or by written consent signed and
acknowledged by seventy-five percent of all property owners within the defined boundaries of a
proposed historic district. Each owner or owners of any legal parcel of record shall have one vote in
the district per parcel, regardless of parcel size to determine this threshold. Lots that have been

9 -6

LEAVENWORTH, KANSAS



DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS
ARTICLE 10. SUPPLEMENTAL STANDARDS

10.02 Wind Energy

ARTICLE 10. SUPPLEMENTAL STANDARDS

10.01 Solar Energy

The following provisions regulate the use of renewable (alternative) energy systems where the use of an
alternative energy system is requested by a property owner. This section does not permit or regulate
renewable energy production facilities owned or operated by private firms or public utilities, which

generate energy beyond that needed by a single dwelling or commercial operation with less than 10,000
square feet of floor space.

A Solar Array Defined: A “solar array” shall mean a freestanding, ground-mounted solar seliection
device system consisting of a linked series of photovoltaic modules, the primary purpose of which
is to provide for the collection, inversion, storage, and distribution of solar energy for electricity
generation, space heating, space cooling, or water heating._Solar Arrays may be considered
either a primary or accessory use.

B. Solar Array Standards: All solar arrays shall comply with the following requirements:
1. Setbacks, Location, and Height:
a. Solar array shall not be located in the front yard between the principal structure

and the public right-of-way.

b. A solar array shall be located a minimum of six feet from all property lines and
other structures.

C. An accessory solar array in any residential district shall not exceed the greater of
one-half the footprint of the principal structure or 600 square feet, whichever is
greater. The size of accessory arrays in mixed-use and nonresidential districts
shall not exceed one-half of the footprint of the principal structure. Any proposed
solar array in excess of the stated size limits shall require approval of a Special

Use Permit.

d. There shall be no size limits on solar arrays as a primary use on a site.
However, the maximum lot coverage of any solar array shall not exceed 80
percent.

e. A solar array shall not exceed 20 feet in height and shall not create any solar

reflectivity that measurably impacts surrounding properties.

2. Code Compliance: Solar arrays shall comply with all applicable building and electrical
codes contained in the adopted building code. The solar collection system shall be
maintained and in productive use or removed within 90 days of notice from the city that
the system is not incompliance with city regulations.

10 - 1

LEAVENWORTH, KANSAS
REvisep 20186



DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS
ARTICLE 12. DEFINITIONS

Driveway, Customary: A private lane which leads from a street or an alley to a garage, carport, rear yard
parking area, a parking space established in accordance with the provisions of this ordinance, or to
another street or alley. Such driveway may extend in front of, alongside of, or in the rear of a principal
structure either planned for or erected upon a building site.

Duly Authorized Representative: Any individual or person or any section, division or department of the
city administration or any individual or person within the designated section, division or department of the
city administration who has been designated by the Director to implement, administer, and enforce the
provisions of these Development Regulations. Generally, references are to the City Planner and his/her
designee, assignee, agent, or designated person as used in the text of the ordinance.

Dwell Time: The length of time during which each frame is displayed on any sign that is capable of
sequentially displaying more than one message on its sign face.

Dwelling in Mixed-Use Structure: A dwelling unit within a larger structure, which is used in whole or in
part as a commercial establishment. The dwelling unit(s) need not be the principal residence of the
business operator.

Dwelling, Attached: A dwelling where at least one wall is shared, in common, with another dwelling.
Dwelling, Detached: A dwelling which is separated from any other principal structure

Dwelling, Earth Sheltered: A single family dwelling unit which incorporates the use of earthen materials
to insulate not more than three sides of the structure, but which incorporates a conventional mansard, hip,
gable, or gambrel roof, all built to the specifications of the local building code. For the purposes of
administering this ordinance, an earth sheltered dwelling is NOT a basement dwelling.

Dwelling, Elderly or Retirement Home: A dwelling unit or high-rise apartment building specifically
designed to be occupied by residents who are at least sixty-two (62) years of age, and who are
ambulatory and able to take care of themselves.

Dwelling, IBC/IRC Modular Home: Sectional prefabricated buildings or houses that meet local building
codes and consist of multiple modules or sections, which are manufactured in a remote facility and then
delivered to their intended site of use. The modules are assembled into a single residential building using
either a crane or trucks.

Dwelling, Live/Work: A dwelling unit, part of which may be used as a business establishment and the
dwelling unit is the principal residence of the business operator.

Dwelling, Mobile Home: A movable dwellin irty-
wide, constructed to be towed on its own chassis and designed to be installed with or without a

12 « 11

LEAVENWORTH, KANSAS



DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS
ARTICLE 12. DEFINITIONS

Dwelling, Multi-Family: A building or portion thereof, designed for occupancy by three (3) or more families.
Dwelling, Single Family: A building designed for occupancy by one (1) family.

Dwelling, Single-Family Detached: A building designed for occupancy by one (1) family, which has
required yards and setbacks from other residential structures.

Dwelling, Townhouse: A building designed for occupancy by one (1) family in a style of medium-density
housing that originated in Europe in the late 17th century, where a row of identical or mirror-image houses
share side walls.

Dwelling, Two-Family: A building designed for occupancy by two (2) families

Dwelling: A dwelling is any building or portion thereof not including mobile homes, which is designed or
used exclusively for residential purposes including an attached garage, provided the attached garage is
subordinate in area to the living portion of the structure. An attached garage shall have a common wall
with a main structure for a distance of at least 25% of the length of the longest dimension of the garage.
An attached garage not meeting this test may qualify as a detached garage, which need not comply with
the five (5) foot setback requirement between buildings but shall meet all setback requirements of the
principal structure.

Easement: A right of the owner of one (1) parcel of land by reason of such ownership, or a right of the
public, to use the land of another for a special purpose as designated.

Educational and Scientific Research, Development, and Testing Services:
Element: An individual defining feature of a building, structure, site, or district.

Elevated Building: For insurance purposes, a non-basement building which has its lowest elevated floor
raised above ground level by foundation walls, shear walls, posts, piers, pilings, or columns.

Eligible Community or Participating Community: A community for which the Administrator has
authorized the sale of flood insurance under the National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP).

Environmental Officer: The Director of Planning & Community Development.

Environs: The area immediately surrounding a property listed upon the National Register of Historic
Places (hereafter, “registered”). The Historic Preservation regulations shall apply to all structures which
are within 300 feet of a registered property and to all structures intervisible with the registered property up
to, but not farther than, 500 feet. Intervisible is further defined as “the condition of being able to see one
point from another without physical, permanent obstruction.” Intervisibility shall be determined by
standing at the main entrance of the registered property and looking in all directions for a distance of up
to 500 feet. All references to “within 500 feet of a landmark or historic district” as used throughout this
code shall use the intervisibility standard for determining changes to the environs of a registered property.

12 - 12

LEAVENWORTH, KANSAS



DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS
ARTICLE 12. DEFINITIONS

Secretary: Secretary of the Planning Commission.

Semi-Permanent Structures: Structures that have a general lifespan less than that of the primary
structure. Examples include both above and below grounds swimming pools, storage sheds, play
structures, and gazebos.

Senior Housing: Housing for people over 55 and their immediate family members, which may include
some limited on-site care.

Service Station, Automobile: A retail business engaged primarily in the sale of motor fuels; but also in
supplying goods and services generally required in the operation and maintenance of automobiles.

Setback Line or Building Line: A line fixed parallel to the lot line beyond which a building cannot
extend under the terms of the Development Regulations. It is equivalent to the yard requirement.

Set-Back: The required distance between each structure located on a building lot and the property lines
of the lot. Setting: The immediate physical environment of a building, structure, site, or district.

Sexually Oriented Business: A business establishment open to the public, or to members, that offers for
sale any or all of the following: nude or semi-nude entertainment, sexually oriented outcall services, sexually
oriented retail sales of products, seminude dancing, and seminude dancing agencies. These include any
facility or establishment which offers for sale, loan or rental any printed, recorded, photographed, filmed or
otherwise viewable material, or any sexually oriented paraphernalia or aid, if a substantial portion (over
25%) of the stock or trade is characterized by an emphasis on matters depicting, describing or relating to
sexual activities. This may also involve employees, contractors or other workers displaying uncovered male
or female genitals or nude female breasts related to some form of monetary compensation paid to the entity
operating the use or to persons involved in such display.

Shape: Surfaces and edges of a building and individual elements.

Shelter Home: Shelter Home means an enclosed building, or portion thereof, operated by a nonprofit
entity for the purpose of providing shelter. bathing and restroom facilities. a secure place for belongings.
and sleeping accommadations for people at no charge. A hemeless-sheliershelter home mayshould
include related support such as meals, medical services, social services, counseling, and training.A

i it in-whi 5 orf | ohi : : ning-send
assist-with-the-problem-of-domestic-vielence-

Shelter, Domestic Violence: A place of temporary refuge and support for people escaping violent or
abusive situations.

Shrub: Any self-supporting, woody plant of a species, which normally grows to an overall height of less
than fifteen (15) feet in this region.

Sidewalk: A paved walk for pedestrians along and at the side of a street.

Sign Alteration: The replacement, enlargement, reduction, reshaping, changing, or adding to a sign,
sign structure or other supporting members.

Sign Face: The entire area within a square, circle, rectangle, triangle or combination thereof that
encompasses the extreme limits of the writing, representation, emblem, or other display, together with

12 - 32

LEAVENWORTH, KANSAS



DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS

APPENDIX A.

UseE TABLE

Table A1-1, TABLE OF PERMITTED USES
P = Permitted, S = Special Use Permit Required

Use Category Residential Non-Residential Overlay
Subcategory
Specific Use Type g‘? G "u:. © |5 ‘o_; X|lalala]|a
2 I I I I - = - S I L e S - R -
RESIDENTIAL USES
Household Living
Dwelling, Single-Family Detached B SRE P R Pl S RE P S P|S
Dwelling, Two-Family S|SsS|S|SsS|P]|P RE| P EE|ES
Dwelling, Townhouse o [ R e Pl P REIRE
Dwelling, Multi-Family BUER P P | P
Dwelling in Mixed-Use Structure Note [1] P Pl B P P P PP
Dwelling, Live/Work P Pl P P P P PP
Dwelling, Manufactured P g e [
' DSl
Dwelling, Mobile Home
Group Living
Assisted Living Facility SHJESIHESEIESSIESHILS S BB S| S|S
Convent/Monastery PSPPSR PR HPE R P
Dormitory S| eSO B S|ES S
Fraternity/Sorority Home S| S| s |S|Ss
Group Home: Disabled (K.S.A. 12-736) P P P P P P P P S S |S
Nursing Home/Hospice SU|ESE|ESH| UST| RS P S| S|S
Senior Housing S|S|s|s|P]P S P| P S| S]|S
Shelter, Domestic Viclence B P P P P P P P P P P PP
Shelter Home 8 | S|S|IS5FTETE ElalS1P B S|P|S
Student Housing S|S[S|S|P]|P P B B
PUBLIC AND INSTITUTIONAL USES
Community Services
| Adult Day Center |EsHEicH|ESH|EcR|S=Eleslemsss P | P | P | P | |&= s [P P
N o= 2
LEAVENWORTH, KANSAS

REviIsED 2022




DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS

APPENDIX A. USE TABLE

Table A1-1, TABLE OF PERMITTED USES

P = Permitted, S = Special Use Permit Required

Use Category Residential Non-Residential Overlay
Subcategory
Specific Use Type g. D :. ® E ‘(? F S = I = I = ) =
zlelelele|2|2|Z|2|8|8|8|=(x[B[2[5]2
Campground S
Community playfields, playgrounds, and parks R P RRI.PIPIRE|P PREPEIER
Golf course, public S| S|S|S S S
Golf course, private S|S|S|S S S
Zoo P
Transportation
Airport S| S| S S
Bus Garage and Equipment Maintenance P R LR
Bus Terminal SE|USTIER R P P |EE
Heliport S S S S
Railroad Terminal P
Taxi Dispatch S e LB WP
Truck Terminal, Freight, Air Courier Services P P
Utility
: : PlRIRP|IR|IRP|R]|R PR RIR|R Rl R|PR
Private Wind Energy Systems gl sl g ilsi] s PS| s | s s|s|s SH|ES IS
Private Solar Collection Systems PEEEN RN ErPRIECERSERSESEsl P | P [ P | P P | P PR |NREIER
Commercial Wind Energy Systems SEESH|ESHIESHESHIESH|ESE|ESE| S | S S| S | S |[ESEUESHIESIES
Commercial Solar Collection Systems S| ESH|ESH|ESEESH|ESE|ESH|ESHE] S | S S| S| S [ESE ST SIS
Communication Tower SHlESEESRESEIESEESHESH|ESE] S | S | 5| S | S | S [ESRESEIESIES
Communication Tower — Alternative Structure sHllEsuisE|stlisn|EsElisEEstl s | s | S| S | S | S [SHSEISENSEES
Communication Facility on Existing Structure sElashlESHEsHaskEsE|icHEsE] s | S | S| S | S | S [ESEESHESHES
Water Storage PRESH|USE|ESE|iSE|Esu|EshEst| S | S | P | P So|ESEHIES
COMMERCIAL USES
Animal Sales and Service
[ Kennel I ) O [ e I N R (|
A -4
LEAVENWORTH, KANSAS

REVISED 2022






